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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Directors’ Report

Operations

The Group is the leading provider of monitered atarm solutions We conduct our business through three segments, portfolio
for residential households and small businesses in Eurcpe. We service, customer acquisition and adjacencies.

offer premium alarm services to our portfolio of over 3.3 miliion The Verisure Topholding 2 Group was created in 2016. The
customers in 16 countries in Europe and Latin America. first year, 2016/2017, covered more than twelve months why this

has not been included in the overview below.

Key figures
EURthousand (if not otherwise Stated) o oo o mem oot it e oo etz rrnrie 2O 2018
Portfolio services segment:
Unaudited operating data_ R S
Total subscribers (year-end), units 3, 346 712 2,930,753
Cancellations, units I C 195362 171,099
Attrition rate (LTM) ) S S 6.2%  82%
Net subscriber growth, units’ S ) o 415 959 3#4 630
Subscriber growth rate, net - o Tﬁ.z%” 13.3%
Average monthly revenue per user (ARPU), (in EUR) 51.2 402
Monthly adjusted EBITDA per subscriber (EPC), (in EUR)? S 286 %9
Non-IFRS and Irlﬁiﬁﬁ'anugl)d_ata ) S e )
Portfolio services revenue o 1,548, 936 % 329 536
Portfo{lo services adltisgecf EBITDA® o o - -_ ) ‘_I D_7531£_ 896?&7
Portfolio services adjusted EBITDA margin - pos% 670%
Customer acquisition segment:
Unaudited operatingdata o
New subscribers added (gross) o i - S 611,321 i 515,624
Cash acquisition cost per new subscriber (CPA ), (in EURY" 1208 1,220
Non-IFRS and IFRS financial data - - - ) ) _ -
Cqstqrr_ner ac_q_u_isition revenue ) ) ) ) o 3295098 ;’266,823
Customer acquisition adjusted EBITDA® o ) o o (316, 297) ) {277.768)
Customer acquisition capital expenditure o 422,445 351,304
Adjacencies segment:
Non-IFRS and IFRS financialdata S e
Adjacencies revenue o . B 22896 16,167
Adjacencies adjusted EBITDA o o 2,035 (2322)
Consolidated:
Unaudited operating data S -
?gyb_ac_k_pe:ripd_(in YLiTS)G o . . R e _ ) 35 o 3.77
Non-FRS and IFRS financial data S o -
Revenue L - - L L B 1900 730 _J._612,525
Organic revenue growth L o o . 186% o 19.4%
Adjusted EBITDAY o o o 761,086 610,614
Adjusted EBITDA margin B ) o i . 400%  379%
Capital expenditures 552,909 500,138
Reported {including SDI) S - _________h__“ o
Revenue i ) ) 1806730 1.612,525
Adjusted EBITDA’ 102,869 583,549
1) Differences in reconallation with end of period subscnber data are 4) Includes the effect from IFRS 16 of EUR 48 in 2019.

pnmary due te acquisition and disposal of centract postfolios 5} kncludes the effect fram IFRS 16 of EUR 29,503 thousand in 2019,

2) Includes the effect from IFRS 16 of EUR 0 3 in 2019 6) Includes the effect from IFRS 16 of 0.1 years 1n 2019,

3) Includes the effect from IFRS 16 of EUR 11,929 thousand in 2019, 7) Includes the effect from IFRS 16 of EUR 41,431 thousand in 2019,

All amounts are including IFRS 15 with adjustments of 2018 comparatives. Refer to note 3 for further details.
2019 includes effects from adoption of IFRS 16 with no restatement of 2018 comparatives.
All negative amounts in this report are shown within parenthesis.
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Our segments

We operate a subscription-based business, which we conduct
through three segments: portfolio services, customer acquisition
and adjacencies.

Portfolio services

The portfolio services segment providas monitoring services to
existing customers for a monthly subscription fee, We enter
into self-renewing monitoring services agreements with our
customers, usually at the time of installaticn and the majority
of our customers pay via direct debit. We provide monitoring
services through dedicated monitoring centres. The centres
filter and respond to customers’ alarms. We also provide
customer service and support for all our installed systems.
Qur relatively low attrition rate of 6.2% in both 2019 and 2018
has historically allowed the segment to generate stable and
recurring cash flow.

The substantial cash flow from the portfolio services
segment atlows us te fund expenditure required to grow the
customer base. In 2019, the segment generated revenue of EUR
1,548.9 million (1,329.5 in 2018), representing 81.5% (82.5% in
2018) of total revenue and adjusted EBITDA of EUR 1,075.3
million (890.7 in 2018), equivalent to a 69.4% (67.0% in 2018)
EBITDA margin. As of December 31, 2018, the Group had
approximately 3.3 million (2.9 in 2018) customers, all connected
to our alarm monitoring centres.

The result and cash flow of the portfolio services segment
during any period are primarily impacted by the average
number of monitored alarm customers during that period,
the average monthly subscription fee charged, and the
capital expenditure and other costs incurred in connection
with on-going monitoring services. | e average number of
customers within any period is primarily affected by attrition
rates for existing customers and the number of new customers
added during that period.

We have an attractive offer in the markets in which we
operate both from a product and service standpoint. We
normally increase subscription fees each year based on varicus
consumer price indices combined with value improvements in
our offerings in each market. We also increase subscription
fees with respect te individual customers to the extent they
add new services and features.

The costs incurred in the portfotio services segment
primarily include labour costs associated with monitoring
and customer service activities (such as monitoring centre
aperators and field technicians). Capital expenditure for
portfolio services is generally low and primarily consists of
purchases of upgraded customer equipment and computer
servers and other hardware and software at the Group's
monitoring centres. As a result, we are able to significantly
improve our operating margins and cash flow as we add new
customers to our existing operations.

To monitor performance in the portfolio services segment,
management focuses on a number of key metrics, including
average revenue per user (ARPU), monthly adjusted EBITDA per
customer (EPC) and attrition rate. These metrics are described
in maore detail under “definitions”.
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Customer acquisition

The customer acquisition segment develops, sources,
purchases, provides and instatls alarm systems for new
customers in return for an installation fee. This fee typically
only covers a pertion of the costs associated with purchasing,
marketing, selling and installing each alarm system. As a result,
the segment’s operations represent an upfront investment in
our business to acquire new customers, consequently griving
revenue growth in the partfolio services segment. In 2019, the
customer acquisition segment generated EUR 329.1 million of
revenue and negative adjusted EBITDA of EUR 316.3 million
{2778 in 2018).

The cost of acquiring a customer includes the cost of the
alarm equipment installed at customer gremises as well as
marketing, sales, installation and other related activities. Qur
upfront investment (including the capital expenditure and
other costs associated with eriginating a subscriber} is
partially offset at the time of sale by the installation fee paid
by a new subscriber. We seek subsequently to recapture the
remainder of our upfront investment through the monthly
subscription fees, net of an-going monitoring costs {or EPC),
generated by the customer.

Adjacencies segment

The adjacency segment capturing the sale of remote maonitoring
and assistance devices and services for senior citizens. As
these sales are not considered a part of our core alarms
business, they are reparted under a separate reporting
segment.

Employees

rhe Group had 17144 (14,841 in 2018) full time equivalent

(FTE) employees in 2019, Approximately 34% of the FTEs were
women and 6% were men. This ratio was 33% respectively 67%
in 2018. Approximately 36% of the employees were located in
Spain and 16% in France. After Spain and France, the highest
concentrations of employees were in Brazil, Sweden, UK, Italy
and Portugal. In Sweden and, to a lesser extent, Norway,
Finland and Denmark, we work closely with partners to sell

and install our products instead of using cur own employees.

Regulation and Legal Proceedings
Regulation
Our operations are subject to a variety of laws, regulations and
licensing requirements in the counties in which we operate.
Most of the laws and regulations specific to the industry are
country or municipal-wide in scope. Legislation refating to
consumer protection, fair competition, data privacy and other
generally applicable areas are either EU or country-wide in scope.
Regulation both poses a threat and offers opportunity to the
Group. The threats are described in "Risk Factors” on page 61. In
terms of opportunities, regulation and voluntary standards in
the area of security and safety services offer us the oppartunity
to set purselves apart as a Group that is better eguippad than
other companies operating in the same segment to meet new
requiraments, to partner with law enforcers, insurance companies
and other relevant stakehoiders, and to market our services with
certifications valued by cansumers, We are actively pursuing
apportunities to positively influence the regutatory environment.
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Sales and Marketing

Some jurisdictions regulate sales methods by restricting door-
to-door sales or direct mailing. We do not currently encounter
these reguiations in our largest countries, such as Spain,
Sweden, France, Portugal and Norway. However, Denmark does
prohibit door-to-door sales. In this jurisdiction, we have had to
alter our sales approach to rely more on advertising our products
in public forums, A similar restriction has now been intreduced
in Belgium. That said, a European Directive approved in
December 2019 establishes that door-to-deor sales cannot be
banned "as is" but that limitations to this activity can be adopted
by Member States, which have two years to transpose the
Directive into taw. If we continue to encounter these regulations,
it may require us to change our sales approach with potential
customers. See “Risk Factors — Risks Related to Our Business
and Industry — Qur business operates in a regulated industry,
and noncompliance with regulations could expose us to fines,
penaities and other liabilities and negative consegquences.” All
of the countries in which we operate have regulations protecting
censumers in their dealings with a company’s sales force.
Typically, these regulations may either provide a customer with
a guaranteed trial period or limit the ability te lock a consemer
into a contract with no right to terminate without a penalty.

Alarm Verification

We are subject to regulations covering the dispatching of
emergency personnel and false alarms. An increasing number of
local governmental authorities have adopted laws, regulations
or policies aimed at reducing the perceived costs to them of
responding to false alarm signals. For example, in France police
will only respond te an alarm they have been forwarded once
that alarm has been venfied. Spain, our largest country, has
regulated verification protocols requiring that alarms have to be
verified either through video, audio or personat verification steps
in order to be considered as “canfirmed alarms"”. Otherwise,
emergency personnel witl not respond unless three sequential
alarms are triggered within 30 minutes, or are verified by audio
or video means. if emergency personnel are dispatched to a false
alarm, some jurisdictions allow far penalties to be imposed on
aither the alarm owner or the alarm provider. in France, police
are allowed to penalise the alarm provider for a false alarm that
has been forwarded. Likewise, in Spain, emergency responders
have discretion to impose penalties for frequent false alarms
as high as EUR 30,000 per incident. These changes may cause
atarm service providers to adopt additional measures fo limit
the risk of false atarms, such as the use of third-party guard
services to verify alarms, install new monitering equipment or
upgrade existing equipment.

Maonitoring

We have 2 monitaring center in each of the key geographies
where we operate. In some countries these centers are
regulated by either the police or insurance companies and
require licenses or permits. For instance, Sweden and Norway
consider monitoring centers in the same category as a guarding
service, and require each center to abtain an equivalent license
that they require of guarding services. In Spain, monitoring
centers are subject to stringent approvals by the police. Many
countries also impose minimum staffing requirements (normally
at least two operators must be present) and minimum training
standards for operators in monitoring centers.
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Equipment and Installation
The monitoring products we install are reguiated by EU and
national laws, including on heatth, safety and environmental
protection. The regulatory cbligations on the Group and its
suppliers depends on their respective roles and activitiesin a
product’s supply chain and the features of the relevant product.
In order to cenduct installations of alarms, we generally must
be registered for this purpose in the countries we operate in.
We currently have all required registrations in each of our
countries. Same markets impose regulations on the maintenance
of qur products. France and Spain require that we provide
certiied maintenance service as part of each contract we enter
into with a customer. Additionally, some countries that do nat
currently regulate maintenance of resident:al alarms do regulate
business alarms. Such regulations apply to our small business
custamers, In the future, these countries may expand such
regulations to the residential marketplace.

Legal Proceedings

At any given time, we may be a party to regulatory proceedings
or to litigation or be subject to non-litigated claims arising out
of the narmal operations of our businesses such as product
liability, unfair trading and employment claims. We currently
believe that our likely Liability with respect to proceedings
currently pending is not material to our financial position. The
Norwegian Competition Authority (NCA) launched an investigation
in June 2017 involving a company subsidiary in Norway {*Verisure
Norway”), with which that company has fully cooperated. The
NCA issued a statement of abjections on june 17 2019 to Verisure
Norway and the company with its preliminary findings. The
statement included recommendations for a fine of NOK 784
million. The company disagrees with the preliminary findings and
on November 18 2019 submitted its response to the statement
of objections. We will continue cogperating with the NCA.

The Spanish tax authorities commenced an audit in 2017 intc
ESML SD Iberia Helding 5.A. and Securitas Direct Espana S.AU
regarding the financial years 2012-2014. The audit was of a
general nature. The audit was completed in June 2019 and the
result from the audit was incorporated in the financial
statements.

Risfs and uncertainties
A summary of the Groups risks are shown below. To read more
about these risks and uncertainties, see Risk factors on page 56.

» We operate in a highly competitive industry and our resulis
may be adversely affected by this competition

= The success of our business depends, in part, on our ability
to respond to the rapid changes in our industry and provide
customers with technological features that meet their
expectations.

« We are susceptible to economic downturns, particulariy

those impacting the housing market or consumer spending.

Attrition of customer accounts or failure to cantinue to

acquire new customers in a cost-effective manner could

adversely affect our operations.

« Our substantial concentration of sales in Iberia (Spain and
Portugal) makes us more vulnerable to negative
devetopments in the region.

= Certain of our potential competitors may seek to expand
their market share by bundling their existing offerings with
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additional products and services.

Potential disputes over or other events relating to the brand

name SECURITAS may negatively impact our results of

operations.

= We have incurred and may continue to incur significant
expenses in connection with developing our brands,

= We may face difficulties in increasing our customer base or
our subscription fees ar up-selling new products to our
curient customers, and these difficulties may cause our
operatng results to suffer.

« We are subject to ingreasing operating costs and inflation

risk which may adversely affect our earnings, and we may not

be able to successfully implement our comprehensive cost
savings program, FOG.

An increase in labar costs in the jurisdictions in which we

operate, especially in Spain, may adversely affect gur

business and profitability.

» Any significant or prolenged disruption of our monitoring
centers could constrain our ability to effectively respond to
alarms and serve our customers.

+ Any disruption to the sacieties in which we operate, or in

which cur suppliers operate, as a result of the impacts of

Covid-19 couid impact our ability to increase our customer

base at the same rate, maintain the same low levels of

attrition, deliver uninterrupted Mmgh quality services to our
customers or source the products needed for our operations
and may therefor adversely affect our business, operating
results ar prafitability.

Qur reputation as a supplier and service provider of high-

guality security offerings may be adversely affected by

preduct defects or shortfalls in our customer service

« we may face liability or damage to our reputation or brand
for our failure to respond adequately to alarm activations.

» Qur business cperates in a regulated industry, and

noncompliance with regulations could expose us to fines,

penalties and other liabilities and negative consequences.

Increased adeption of false alarm ordinances by local

governments or gther similar regulatory developments could

adversely affect our business.

» We rely an third-party suppliers for our alarm systems and
any failure or interruption in the provision of such products
or failure by us to meet minimum purchase requirements
could harm our ability to cperate our business.

* We may incur unexpectedly high casts as a result of meeting
our warranty obligations.

« Qurinsurance palicies may not fully protect us from

significant liabilities.

Unauthorised use of or disputes mvolving our proprietary

technology and processes may adversely affect our business.

+ We may be unable to effectively manage our growth into new
geographies or realise the intended benefits from our
acquisitions,

+ We are exposed to risks associated with foreign currency
fluctuations as we translate our Ainancial results into euro,
and these risks would increase if individual currencies are
reintroduced in the Eurozone.

= We may suffer future impairment lasses, as a result of
potential dectines in the fair value of our assets.

.

-
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+ We are subject to risks from legal and arbitration
proceedings, as well as tax audits, which could adversely
affect our financial results and condition.

We are dependent on our experienced senior management
team, who may be difficult Lo replace.

Group Development

2019 was another record year for Verisure, We continue to lead
the residential and small business segment of the broader
security services market in Europe. We are in turn both the
largest provider and also the cne adding the most customers in
absolute. We are proud that we are driving the growth of the
category in Furope 5o that more families and small business
owners can be protected. And, we know there remains a very
significant oppertunity for increased penetration in every
country given most European families do not have an existing
security selution. That is both our social responsibility and
business opportunity.

We work hard to provide a service to our customers that they
value, that exceeds their expectations, that leads the industry.
To enable this, we focus on innovation and continuous
improvement in the customer experience at all touch points.
And we want to bring this to more customers. So we atso
prioritise category-creating marketing and go-to-market
excellence. And, we continue every day to try to improve our
methods and our performance. We know that tamorrow we can
always do things better than today.

Research and development

Innovation is core to our ONA. Differentiated technology is a
major enabler of our offering. But it is also the product of
huinan expertise, accumulated over many years, drawn from
closeness to the real experiences of our customers. sales
people, engineers and operaters. These insights are a source
of advantage. We leverage these insights with significant
investment into product and service innovation, all to create
true peace of mind for our customers.

Financial instruments

To read about the Groups use of financial instruments, as well
as the Group’'s exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign
currency risk, see note 22 - Financial risk management.

Covid-19

As we are issuing this report, the company is facing the spread
of the COVID-19 virus in Europe and elsewhere with a rapidly
changing situation. The company is currently focused on
protecting its people and customers and thinking about the
lang-term. Our assessment of related threats, which is still
ongoing, are described in the section "Risk Factors™ on page 61,

Sustainabitity
To read about the Groups wark with sustamability, see the
separate sustainability report.

Events during the reporting period

In March 2019, the Group acquired the remaining 15% minority
stake in Verisure italy $.7.1. Following the completion of the
transaction, Verisure ltaly is a wholly-owned subsidiary.
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During April 2019, the owners of the Group sold -7.5%
minority interest in the Group to Carporacion Financiera Alba
(Alba). Alba 1s a part of the March Group, one of the leading
Spanish private business and financial groups and is listed an
the Madrid stock exchange.

On May 13, 2019, the Group raised EUR 200 million of Senior
Secured Notes debt to repay cutstanding amounts under the
Revolving Credit Facility.

As previously reported, the Norwegian Competition Authority
in June 2077 launched an investigation involving Verisure
Norway. On June 17, 2019, the Norwegian Competition Authority
issued a statement of objections to Verisure Norway and
Verisure Midholding AB with its preliminary findings. According
to the notification, the NCA is considering the imposition of a
fine of approx. EUR 80 million (NOK 784 mitlion) an Verisure
Norway and Verisure Midholding, for which the two companies
would be jointly and severally liable. We disagree with the
NCA's pretiminary findings and have responded in detail. At this
stage, it 1s not possible to predict if and when a legally
enforceable decision or ruling will be issued.

In Novemnber 2019, the Group entered into definitive
agreements to create a strategic partnership with Arlo
Technolosies, Inc., the #1internet connected camera brand,
including the acquisition of Arlo’s European business. The aim
of the strategic partnership is to leverage both companies”
capabilities to create incremental scale to address the ever-
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growmng demand for residential and commercial security. The
transaction was closed on December 30 2019.

In November 2019, Anthony Loizeau was appointed as
Managing Director for the Nordics Cluster. Anthony joined
Verisure in 2012 as Managing Director for Latin America,
developing our operations across the region and most recently
opening our Argentina business. Before Verisure Anthony held
several senior positions in a range of industries including CEQ
of Pages Jaunes and of Kompass across France, lheria and
Benelux. He was previously a VP of Crange in France and at
Nestlé. Anthony holds an Executive MBA from HEC Business
Scheol in Paris.

Proposed appropriation of profits

Non-restricted profit at the disposal of the Annual General Meeting
for the parent company.
EUR

BRALETA L YBTBIL T STLO TR ODAL LT YT ANl AN e

__2_,1__84,3140,942

Retained earnings

Result for the year
Total

S o o 21184,33757,851
The Board of Directors proposes that the profits and losses
are appropriated so that
amount to be carried forward

Total

2,184,335,861

AU e Tt oan e o

(5,081

2,184,335,861
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Consolidated Financial Statement

Consolidated Income Statement

EURthousand = . . o S i e, oAote L2019 2018
Revenue — ] %5 1800730 1,612,525
Cost of sales 3 ) B 570,112 (1,007095)  (857106)
Gross profit S 893635 755419
Selling expenses i 5.710,1,12 (259990) (216,107)
Administrative expenses - . _5,67.8,9,1,12 777_&_02.1750) 77777(356,279)7
Other income L o 5 5,98_?_77 6974
Operating profit o o 237480 190,007
Fin@_n_ce_\income L 13 255 30,885
financecosts 3 (%2256 (324.894)
Result before tax - _fa521) - (104,002)
Income tax expense and benefit L . e (85740) (25,392)
Result for the period ) i _ - i (60,261} _(129,394)
Whereof attributabte to: B R S .
- Parentcompeny . _(60281)  (130,083)
- Non-controlling interest . - T 689
- -
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
EURINOUSANT e s oo comiim et o . N . .20

Result for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to the incqme statement

Hedging reserve

(129,394)

Remeasurements of defined bhenefit plans net oftax N ) (71576[1) j {348}
Currency translation differences on foreign operations L (1@4_3__5_)__ (5,?99)
Other comprehensive income e (‘&9?61 ] (5,§67)
Total comprehensive incame for the year (71,2_.::7_)_- (135,041)
Whereof attributahle to: - e

- Parent company ) i (n.257) {135,730)
~ Neoa-cantrolling interest - 689
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EUR thousand Note 2019 2018
Assets L

Non-current assets .

Property, plant and equipment 16 872,846 720,950
Right of use assets 17 132,895 -
Goodwill 4,18 884,261 868,557
Customer portfalio 19 1,016,865 1,034,280
Other intangible assets 20 239,176 167,573
Deferred tax assets 21 30,827 28,867
Derivatives 22,25 23,410 17,603
Trade and other recelvables 22,24 78,431 75,764
Total non-current assets 3,278,115 2'913'601L
Current assets

Inventories 23 126,977 102,488
Trade receivables 22,24 154,075 133,620
Current tax assets 17,872 15,101
Prepayments and accrued income 62,948 34,553 .
Derivatives 22,25 4,758 -
Other current, receivables 22 15,613 10,838
Cash and cash equivalents 22 12,781 8,629
Total current assets 395,024 305,329
Total assets - 3,673,739 3,218,913
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EUR thousand Note 2019 2018
Equity and liabilities S
Equity I

Share capital 7 7
Other paid in capital 2285433 2,285,264
Other reserves 53,924 64,232

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company

Non-controlling interest

{4,734,887) {4,627,272)

(2,395,523)  (2,217,769)

- (2,745)_

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

2395523  (2,280,514)

Liabilities to credit institutions 22,27 __9.3_4_:;830 4,573,202
Derivatives B _2_21233 _J?,?ZG - 5,398
Other non-current liabilities o 22 M4a,5n 120,310
Deferred tax ljabilities! 21 250,295 254,451
Othey provisions o 28 25341 3278
Total non-current liabilites 5,356,527 4,957,640
Current tiabilities __:“ o :_ o
Tradepayables o 22 139,086 125,237
Current tax liabilities e . ) 25,300 19,204
_.blwigr_’g-_t_ggrm borrowings e 22,27 91,726 47,913
Derivatives B 22,25 73 3,746
Accrued expenses and deferred income o 29 426,594 316,135
Other current liabilities . __ o 22 29'95§_,,__m.2?'572 ]
Total current liabitities 712,736 541,807

Total equity and liabilities

3,673,739 3,218,933

1} The majority of the deferred tax liabilities relates to the acquisition of Securifas Direct A3 in 2071
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the parent company and non-controlling interest

Non-
Share  Other paid Other Retained controiling Total
EUR thousand capital in capital reserve garnings iotal interest equity

Balance at January 1, 2019

72,285,264 64,920 (4,627960) (2,277,760)

{2,745) (2,280,514}

Result for the period - - - {60,267) (60,261) - (60,261)
Other comprehensive income - - {10,996) - {10,9986) - (10,996)_
Total comprehensive income - - (10,996) (60,261) (71,257) - (71,257)
Shareholder’s contribution - 169 - - 169 - 169
Transaction with non-controlling interests - - - (46,666)  {(46,666) 2,745 {43,927
Balance at Dec 31, 2019 7 2,285,433 53,924 (4,734,887) (2,395,523) - (2 395,523)

Attributable to equity holders of the parent company and non-controlling interest

Share  Other pald Other Retained controbfl?lqg-, Total
£UR thousand capital in capital reserye earnings Total interest equity
Balance at January 1, 2018, as reported 7 2285264 70,567 (3,137507)  (781,669) (1,802) (783,471}
Change in accounting principles, IFRS 15 - - - {65,956) (65,956) (1,632} {67,588)
Balance at January 1, 2018, as updated
comparatives 7 2,285,264 70,567 (3,203,63)  (847,625) (3,434) (851,059)
Change in accounting principles, IFRS 2 - - - 99,226 99,226 - 99,226
Batance at January 1, 2018, adjus'ted 7 2,285,264 70,567 (3,104,237}  (748,399) (3,434) (751,833)
Result for the period i - - - (130,083}  {130,083) 68%  {129,394)
Other camprehensive income - - (5647 - {5,647) - (5,647)
Total comprehensive income - - (5,647) (130,083) (135,730) 68% (135,041)
Redemption of shares - - - (1,392,815} {1,392,619) - {1,392,619)
Transaction with non-contrelling interest - - - (1,021 (1,027) - {1,021)

Balance at December 31, 2018

7 2,285,264 64,920 (4,627,960) (2,277,769)

(2,745) (2,280,514)
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CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EUR thousand Note 2019 2018
Operating activities
Operating profit 237480 190,007
Reversal of depreciation and amortisation 12 388,593 333,292
Other non-cash items 10 76,788 60,251
Paid taxes (48,746) (40,255)
Cash flow from operating activities before change in working capital 654,145 543,295
Changein working capital
Change in inventories o £20,072) {28,757}
ichange in trade receivables - B (11,816) {16,432)
Change In other receivables (41,585) {25,586)
Change in trade payables 14,402 11,041
Change in other payables L N 106,135 68,123
Cash flow from change in working capitat 47,066 74,390
Cash flow from operating activities 702,211 557,684
Investing activities o :
Purchase of intangible assets B 19, 20 {295,785) (247,042)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 16 (297138) (253,374)
Settlement of deferred censideration - {4,685)
Acquisition of nen-controlling Interest _ ) 145,000} (3,248)
Acqulsition of net assets o B N (48,304) -
Prepayments of intangible assets (1,798) -
Cash flow from investing activities B {688,025) (508,349)
Financing activitjes
Paid bank and advisory fees {6,397) (12.608)
New financing 200000 1,112,000
Repayment of debt - (630,000)
cher changes in borrowings ) 16,770 68,294
Call cost old debt - (18,900}
‘Premium from new financing 4,651 -
Net Interest paid {209,264) (194,205)
patd distribution ~ N : - {370,528}
Repayment of other non-cuirent receivables . - 697
Other financial items B 014 796) (9,597}
Cash flow from financing activities ) o (9,036) {54,847)
Cash flow for the period 4,151 (5,512)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 8,629 14,252
‘Exchange difference on translating cash and cash equivalents . _2 112)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 12,782 8,629
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Verisure Topholding 2 AB {"the Company”) is a private limited
Liabitity company incorporated on November 18, 2016, in and
under the laws of Sweden with the registration number
559086-0333 and with its registered office in Malmd. Verisure
Topholding 2 AB's address is Box 392, 201 23 Malma. The Group's
head office is based in Geneva, Switzesland since June 2017

Verisure Topholding 2 AB is directly and whotly owned by Dream
Luxco S.C.A. On February 7, 2018, Verisure Topholding AB was
mergad with and into Verisure Tepholding 2 AB. The ultimate
parent entity is Shield Luxco 15.a rl, which operates in and
under the laws of tuxembourg. The Annual Report for Shield
Luxco 15.a rl can be found at the registered office of Shield
Luxco 15.3 rl, 15 Boulevard FwW Raitteisen, L-2411 Luxembourg.
Shield Luxco 1 5.4 rl is controtled by Heltman & Friedman, a
global private equity investment firm,

Nature of operations

The Group is the leading provider of professionally manitored
alarms for residential househotds and small business in Europe
and growing in Latin America. The Group cperates in twelve
Eurapean countries and in four Latin American countries. The
European cauntries are Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France,
Germany, Haly, the Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Spain,
Sweden and United Kingdom. The Latin American countries are
Argentina, Brazil, Chile and Peru.

The Group comprises of three segments: customer acquisition,
portfolio services and adjacencies. The customer acguisition
segment provides and installs alarm systems for new
custamers in return for an installation fee. The portfolio
services segment provides monitgring services to existing
customers for a monthly subscription fee. The adjacency
segment captures the sale of remote monitoring and
assistance devices and services for senior citizens,
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Note 1 Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Interpational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as approved by the EU, the Swedish Annual
Accounts Act and the Swedish Financial Reporting Board’s
standard RFR 1 Supplementary Accounting Rules for Groups.
The accounting policies are unchanged compared with those
applied in 2018, except for changes of lease accounting and for
hedge accounting. '

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except where a fair value measurement
is required according to IFRS (e.g. for derivative financial
instruments, which have been measured at fair value).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the assumption that the Group is a going concern and will
continue in operation for the foreseeable future. Management
believes that the going concern assumption is apprapriate for
the Group due to adequate liquidity, capital position, and
continued improvement in operating results. Furthermore,
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Summeary of accounting palicies

The most important accounting policies in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are described below.
These policies were applied consistently for ali years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the results, cash
flows and assets and liabilities of the Group and all Subsidiaries.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled, either directly or indirectly,
by the Group, where control is the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefit frem
tts activities. The effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisabte or convertibte is taken into accounl when
determining whether the Group has a controlling influence on
ancther entity.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power aver the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ngte 1 cont.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition
and deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. The
accounting principles used by subsidiaries are adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the principtes applied by
the Group.

All inter-company transactions, balances and unreatised gains
and losses attributable to inter-company transactions are
eliminated in the preparation of the consalidated financial
statements,

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items inctuded in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured vsing the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the functional currency), The consolidated financial
statements are presented in euro (EUR), which is the parent
company's functional and presentation currency.

Transacrions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are transtated into the
functional currency in accordance with the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences
on monetary items are recognised in the income statemeant
when they arise. Exchange differences from cperating items are
recognised as either cost of sales or selling or administrative
expenses, while exchange differences from fnancial items are
recognised as financiat income or financial expenses. When
preparing the financial statements of individual companies,
foreign currency denominated receivables and liabilities are
translated to the functional currency of the individual company
using the exchange rates prevailing at each balance sheet date.

Group compuonies

The results and financial position of all Group companies that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows;

< Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet item presented
are transtated at the closing rate on the closing date of that
balance sheet

= income and expenses for each income statement are

translated at average exchange rates.

All resulting transiation differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

when a foreign operation is sotd or partially disposed of,
translation differences that were recorded in equity are
reclassified and recognised in the income statement as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and {iabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

One of the Group companies operates in Argentina, which is
considered to be a hyperinflationary economy. However, the
effects are currently minimal. The Group continuously evaluates
the effects in order to adjust the valuation when relevant,
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Segment reporting

The Group's operating segments are identified by grouping
together the business by revenue stream, as this is the basis
on which information is provided to the cnief operating
decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of allocating resources
within the Group and assessing the performance of the Group's
businesses. The Group has identified the management team as
its CODM. The segments identified based on the Group's
operating activities are customer acquisition, portfolio servicas
and adjacencies which are explained further hetow.

Customer acqusition

This segment includes the part of the Group that provides and
installs monitored alarms for homes and small businesses.
Sales and installations can be performed both by our own
employees and by external partners, Each new customer
generates instatlation income that is recognmised once
installation of the alarm equipment has been completed. The
Group's costs for materials, installation, administration and
marketing generally exceed the non-recurring income, resulting
in negative cash flow for the segment.

Portfolio services

The partfolio services segment provides monitoring services to
existing customers for a monthly subscription fee. We typically
enter into self-renewing monitoring agreements with
customers at the time of installation and the majority of
customers pay via direct debit. We moniter our instatled base
of alarms through dedicated monitoring centres in order to
verify alarms and initiate an appropriate response when an
alarm is triggered. We also provide customer service and
technical support for alt our installed systems.

Adjocencies

The adjacencies segment captures the sale of remote monitoring
and assistance devices and services for senior citizens. As these
sales are not considered a part of our core alarms business,
these revenues are catesorized as adjacencies.

Business segments are recognised using the same accounting
policies as applied by the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revertues include alarm monitoring and installation fees. The
revenues are recognised only where there is persuasive
evidence of a sales agreement, the delivery of goods or
services has occurred, the sale price is fixed or determinable
and the collectability of revenue is reasonably assured.
Revenues are recognised less discounts and value added tax
and after eiminating sales within the Group.

For customer agreements cantaining multiple deliverabies
{(installation and monitoring services) the transaction price is
allocated to each performance cbligation based on the stand-
alone selling prices. Where Lhese are nat directly observable,
they are estimated based on expected cost plus margin.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 cont.

More specifically income is recognised as follows:

Alarm mornitoring

Income from alarm monitoring services is recognised over time
during the period to which the service relates. The payments
are made in advance or at delivery, When there is a difference
in timing between the payment and the revenue recognised the
difference is accounted for as subscription fees invoiced in
advance.

Installation fees

Revenues from alarm installation is recognised once the
installation is completed. The payments are made at the time
of delivery or through menthly installments. For more
information regarding payment, see section "Financing” below.

Business combinations

8usiness combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
methad. The consideration for the business combination is
measured at fair value on the acquisition date, which is
calculated as the sum on the acquisition date fair value of paid
assets, liabilities that arise or are assumed and equity
ownership issued in exchange for control of the acquired
business. Acquisition related costs are recognised :n the
income statement during the period in which they are incurred.

The consideration also includes fair valuse an the acguisition
date of the assets or liabilities ansing from an agreement
concerning contingent consideration.

Changes to the fair value of a contingent consideration as a
result of additicnal information, concerning facts ang
circumstances at the time on the acquisition date qualify as
adjustments during the assessment period and require
retrospective restatement with corresponding adjustment of
goodwill. All other changes to the fair value of an additional
consideration that is classified as an asset or liability are
recognised in accordance with the applicable standard.
Contingent consideraticn that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and the subsequent settlement is recognised in
equity.

The identifiable acguired assets assumed Liabilities and
contingent assets are recognised at fair value as at the
acquisition date.

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
recognised as existing liabilities arising from events that have
occurred, if their fair value can be reliably calculated.

In a business combination where the sum of the consideration,
any non-controlling interests and the fair value on the
acquisition date of previously held equity interest exceeds the
fair value of identifiable acquired net assets on the acquisition
date, the difference is recognised as goodwill in the statement
of financial position. If the difference is negative, the resulting
gain on the acquisition is recognised as a bargain purchase in
the income statement after review of the difference.
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In the case of each business combination, previousty held non-
controlling interests in the acquired company are measured
either at fair value or at the value of the proportionate share of
the nan-controlling interest of the acquired company’s identifi-
able net assets.

Operating expenses

The Group’s business model involves sales and installaticn
being carried out primarily by the same individuals. The costs
of these activities are reccgnised in gross profit. This means
that “cost of sales” includes some costs that are actually selling
expenses hut cannot be allecated to a specific function.

Employee benefit expense

Cur employees in Belgium, Denmark, France, the Netherlands,
Norway, Sweden, Switzerland, and UK have a pension plan,
whereas our employees in Argentina, Brazil, Chile, Finland,
Germany, ltaly, Peru, Portugal and Spain do not. We offer both
defined contribution and defined benefit pension plans.
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit
schemes under which we pay fixed contributions into a
separate legal entity and have no legal ar constructive
obligation to pay further contributions. Costs for defined
centribution schemes are expensed in the period during which
the employee carried out his or her work. Costs are in line with
the payments made during the period. Defined benefit plans
are post-employment benefit schemes other than defined
contribution plans, with the exception of a limited defined
heneht pian i France and Switzerland. For these plans,
amounts to be paid as retirement benefits are determined by
reference to a formula usually based on employees’ earnings or
years of service. All pension liabilities in Sweden are classified
as defined contribution plans, except pensions for office-based
staff which are through a national multi-employer pension
plan, which is funded in the same manner as a defined
contribution plan. The level of contribution is dependent upon,
among other things, the level of employee participation and
salaries in each country.

Equity plan

A limited number of leaders of the Company also participate in
an equity plan, which allows them to acquire shares at fair market
value in Shield Luxco 2 S.a rl. and/or Dream Luxco SCA (either
directly os through a legal entity). As the investment is done at
fair market value and with particigants’ out-of-pocket resources,
there is no benefit for the empleyees.

Share option plan

Certain employees of the Group are granted share options in
Shield Luxco 2 5.4 r.l. The Share Option Plan is settled through
equity and disclosed accordingly. Hence, the options are recognised
as an employee benefits expenses, with a corresponding increase
in equity during the vesting period. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted. The fair value at grant date is determined
using the Black-Scholes model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note T cong

interest incame
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest methed.

Financing

To enhance the payment plan flexibility for customers some of
the Group's entities offer to finance part of the upfront fee, ie.
the customer gets the cpportunity to pay the financed amount
in monthly installments typically over a three-year period. This
offered service supports the Group's growth and profitability
targets well and may be arranged in two alternative ways;
external or internal financing.

External financing

With external financing the customer is first invoiced for all
installments relating to the amount of financed upfront fee.
These invoices are then sold at a discount 1o a financial
institution which assumes the credit risk but the collection
process remains with the Group. The Group recognises the
received met amount as installation revenue,

internal financing

With internal financing the customer is either invoiced for alt
installments or on a month-by-month basis retating to the
amount of inanced upfront fee. In this case the Group assumes
the credit risk. The net present value of the future installments,
discounted at an appropriate interest rate, is recognised as
installation revenuea.

fncome taxes

Income taxes include current and deferred tax, These taxes
have heen calculated at a nominal amount according to each
country's tax provisions and the tax rates that have been
defined or anpounced and are highly Likely to become allected.
Current tax is tax thatis paid or received for the current year
and includes any adjustments ta current tax for pricr years. in
the case of items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, any tax effect on equity or other
camprehensive income is also recognised. Deferred income tax
is recognised using the balance sheet method, which means
that deferred income tax is calculated on all temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liakilities and
their carrying amounts, Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be
availzble against which the amounts can be utilised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognised at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any cumulative impairment
losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable ta the
acquisition of the asset. Subsequent costs are included in the
assel’s carrying amount of recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, anly when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is based on the asset's cost and is altocated using

the straight-tine method over the asset's estimated useful life,
as follows:
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5-15 years
3-10 years

Alarm eguipment
Other machinery and eguipment

The useful lives and residual values of Group assets are
determined by management at the time of acquisition and are
reviewed annually for appropriateness, The lives are based
primarily on histarical experience with regards to the lifecycle
of customers, as well as anticipation of future events that may
impact useful {ife, such as changes in technology and macro-
economic factors.

Atarm eguipment is primarily equipment installed in customers’
premises. Other machinery and equipment is primarily
IT-equipment and furniture.

An asset’s residual value and value-in-use are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, annualty on the reporting date, An
assel's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the carrying amount is greater than the
estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals
are recognised in the income statement as cost of sales.

Leases

The Group recognises a right of use asset and a lease liability
at the lease commencement date. The right of use asset s
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease Liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or befare the commencemant date. The right of use gsset is
subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful
life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of the right of use asseis are determined
on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment lesses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate. The incremental borrowing
rate i5 specific for each of the Groups entities and is based an
the calculation of cost of debt in the WACC Calculation. it also
considers what kind of asset thatis leased as well as the contract
period. Each quarter the Group evaluates the rates and updates
them regarding any new contracts when necessary. When
material changes are made in a contract, the Group re-evaluate
the discount rate and change when necessary.

tease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprises of fixed payments, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or rate, and amounts expected to be
payable under a residuai value guarantee. Non-lease components
are included in vehicle leases, but not in leases of buildings.
The Group does not lease any intangible assets,

The lease Hability is measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
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Note 1 cont

index or rate or if the Group changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a extension or termination option. When the
lease hability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right of use
asset.

The group has elected not to recognise right of use assets and
lease liabilities for short-term leases of machinery that have a
{ease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises the lease payments associated with
these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

In the comparative period, the Group classifies leases that
transfer substantiaily ail of the risks and rewards of ownership
as financial lease. When this was the case, an asset and Liability
was calculated to the present value of future minimum lease
payments at the commencement date of the lease contract.
The asset was depreciated gver the contract time, and the
lease liability was measured to amortised cost using the
effective rate method. Leased assets ciassified as operating
leases were not recognised in the balance sheet, but the
payments were recognised in the income statementon a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

intangible assets

Goodwill

In a business comhbinatton where the sum of the acquisitian
price, any minarity interest and fair value of any previously
held equity interest on the acquisition date exceeds the fair
value of identifiable acquired net assets on that date, the
difference is recognised as geodwiil. Goodwill is allocated to
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifable
cash flows or cash-generating units {CGUs). Goodwill is not
subject te amortisation and is tested for impairment annually,
or as soon as there is an indication that the asset has declined
in value and carried at cost less accumulaied impairment
tosses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped at
the CGU level. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
alfocated to the unii and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Impairmeant losses recognised for goodwill are not
reversed in 2 subsequent period.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have nat been
adjusted.

The Group prepares and approves formal long term

management plans for its operations, which are used in the
value-in-use calculations.
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Gains and {osses on the disposal of an enatity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

Customer portfolio

The custemer portfclio includes contract portfolios and customer
acquisitions costs. The customer acquisitions costs are costs
directly reiated to the acquisitions of customer contracts and
carried at cost less accumulated amaortisation and any
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset, Amortisation is
based on the asset’s cost and allocated on a straighi-line basis
over the estimated useful life.

Gther intangible assets

Other intangible assets are primarily computer software,
development costs and trademark. Acquired software licenses
are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific scftware. These costs are
amortised over the asset’s estimated useful life. Development
costs for new identifiable and unique software products are
capitalised if they are controlled by the Group and are likely to
generate economic benefits. The capitalised amounts consist
of direct costs and the capitalisable portion of indirect costs.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are
expensed as incurred. Capitatised development costs have a
definable useful life and are amortised on a straight-line basis
from the date the software entered use.

Amortisation for all intangible assets is measured using the
straight-line method during the useful life, as follows:

Customer portfolio 5-24 years
Computer software 3-10 years
Other intangihle assets 3-18 years

An asset’s residual value and value-in-use are reviewed, and
adjusted If appropriate, annualty on the reporting date. An
asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the carrying amount is greater than the
estimatad recoverable amount.

impairment of non-financial assets

Assets with an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested for impairment annualty or as
socn as an indication emerges that they have decreased in
value. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenaver events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the recoverable amount may fall short of the
carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
racoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and vatue-in-use,

Value-in-use is the present valtue of estimated cash flows and
is measured on the basis of assumptions and estimates. The
most significant assumptions relate to organic sales growth,
the operating margin, the extent of operating capital employed
and the retevant pre-tax weighted average cost of capital
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Note 1 cont

{WACC), which is used to discount future cash flows. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are groupad at the
{owest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units}.

With the exception of impairment losses on goodwill,
previously recognised impairment losses are reversed only if a
change has occurred regarding the assumptions that formed
the basis for determining the recoverable value when the
impairment loss was recognised. If this is the case, the
impairment lass s reversed in order to increase the carrying
amount of the impaired asset to its recoverable amount, A
reversal of a previous impairment loss is only recognised where
the new carrying amount does not exceed what should have
heen the carrying amount {after depreciation and amaortisation)
had the impairment loss not been recognised in the first place.
Impairment losses on goodwill are never reversed.

Deferred tox

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
in the future arising from temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financral
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred income tax is
recognised using the balance sheet method, which means that
deferred income tax is calculated on all temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial
recognition {other than in a business rombination) of other
assets and liabitities in a trarsaction that affects neither the
taxable profits nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable tempaorary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interest in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is calculated
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled, or the asset 1s realised based on tax laws
and ratas that have been enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or credited in other
romprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets on fosses carry forward are recognised to
the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the amounts can be utilised. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed on each
balance sheet date and reduced o the extent that it is no
{onger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be availahle
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when thereisa
{egally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities, and when they relate te income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settie its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis,
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Financial instruments
The Group classifies its financial instruments as:

+ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

+ Financial assets at fair value through QCI

» Financial assets at amortised cost

» Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
+ Financial Habilities at amortised cost

The classification of financial assets depends on the business
madel for managing the parifolio in which the financial asset
belongs and the characteristics of the cash flows. Financial
asseis that have cashfiows that are sotely payment of principal
and interest (SPP1), and that are held in a business model that
holds financial assets to collect contractual cashflows ara
classified as and measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
that have cash flows that are SPPI but are held in a business
model that receives its cashflows both from helding the
financial assets to coliect contractual cashflows and from sales
of financial assets are classified as and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All ether financial assets
are classified as and measured at fair value with fair value
changes in the income statement. Management determines the
designation of its financial instruments at initial recognition
and reevaiuates this designation at each reporting date.
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value of “financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
through profht or loss” are recognised as a financial item as
incurred. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair vajue through profit or loss are financial
assets held in a business model notintended to fully or
partially collect contractual cashflows or financiai assets that
do not meet the SPPI criteria and are primarily derivative
instrumants. Derivatives are classified as fair value through
profit or loss mandatorily unless they are designated as hedges
in a hedge accounting relation. Assets in this category are
classified as current or noncurrent assets depending on
purpose and management intention.

Derwvative instruments

The Group's activities expose it to financial risk arising from
changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The use
of financial derivatives is governed by the Group's treasury
policy as approved by the board of directors. This policy
provides written principles on the use of inancial derivatives
consistent with the Group's risk management strategy. The
Group uses Interest rate swaps to economically hedge cash
flows due to interest rate risk on the Group’'s long-term debt.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes. All derivative instrumenis are recognised
initially either as assets or liabilities at fair value on the trade
date in the consolidated balance sheet and are subsequently
revalued at fair value on each reporting date. The changes in
value of derivatives that are not designated as hedges are
recognised in the income statement under finance income or
finance costs line items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 cont.

The components and fair values of the Group's derivative
instruments are determined using the fair value measurements
of significant other observable inputs, classified as level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy. The Group uses observable market
inputs based on the type of derivative and the nature of the
underlying instrument.

Hedge accounting

Where all relevant criteria are met, hedge accounting is applied
to remove the accounting mismatch between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item. Hedge effectiveness is
determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and
through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to
ensure that an economic relationship exists between the
hedged item and hedging instrument.

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for
speculative purpeses.

Financiol assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are primarily trade
receivables and do nct carry any interest and are stated at
their nominal value less any provision for bad debts. A
provision for bad debts is made for expected credit losses
using the simplified approach for both current and non-current
trade receivables. This means that lifetime expected credit
losses are recognised for all trade receivables. Estimated bad
debt provision is based on the ageing of the receivable
balances and historical experience, historicat loss rates and
forward-looking information. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management deems them not to be
collectible. The provision is recognised under "cost of sales” in
the income statement.

Financial assets at amortised cost are financial assets that
have cash flows that are SPPt and are held in a business model
to coliect contractual cash flows. They arise when the Group
provides goods or services directly to a customer without any
intention of trading the receivable that arises. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
menths after the balance sheet date, which are classified as
nan-cyirent assets,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term liquid investments with
originat maturities of three months or less.

Financiel liabilities ot fair value through profit or loss

This category solely includes financial liabilities held for
trading and relates primarily to derivative instruments.
Derivatives are classified as heid for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Derivative instruments are classified as
current or non-current liakilities depending on purpose and
management intention.
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Financial liabilities to amortised cost

Liabilities to credit institutians

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less transaction
costs and thereafter al amortised cost. Any difference between
the net amount received (fess transaction costs) and the repaid
amount is recognised in the income statement over the term of
the loan using the effective interest method.

Trade payables

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter at amartised cost which normally corresponds to the
nominal ameount as the maturity s short.

Inventories

Inventories are recognised at the lower of cost and net
realisable vatue. Cost is determined using the first-in-first-out
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable direct
selling expenses.

Provisions

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount and is
generally recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, it1s probable that payment will he
made to settle the obligation and the payment can be
estimated reliably.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing January 1, 2015:

+ |FRS 16 Leases

The Groug has decided to apply the simplified transition
approach and thus not restated the comparative amounts for
the year prior to first adoption. Tius 15 disclosed in note 31.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

No new accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are mandatory far December 31, 2019 reporting
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

When applying the Group's accounting policies, management
must make assumptions and estimates concerning the future
that affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities at the
halance sheet date, the disclosure of contingencies that existed
on the balance sheet date and the amounts of revenue and
expenseas recognised during the accounting period, Such
assumptions and estimates are based on factors such as
historical experience, the observance of trends in the
industries in which the Group operates and information
available from the Group’s custamers and other outside
saurces. These assumptions and estimates are continuously
evaluated by management.

Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making
assumptions and estimates, actual cutcomes ceould differ from
those assumptions and estimates. An analysis of key areas of
estimates uncertainties on the balance sheet date that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the Group's assets and liabilities within the next
financial year is discussed below.

= Revenue recognition {note 3}

« Testing for impairment of gocdwill and ather assets (note 18}.

» Measurement of deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities {note 21).

« Measurement of provisiens and allocation for accrued
expenses {note 28 and 29},

« Depreciation peried for alarm equipment and amortisation
period for customer partfotio (note 16 and 19).

- [stimates regarding leases {note 11).

Revenue recaghition

Revenue recognition in the Group requires management to
make judgments and estimates, mainly to determine fair values
of the revenue. Determining whether revenues should be
recognized immediately or be deferred require management ta
make judgments on the fair vatue of each deliverable.

Testing for impairment of goodwill and other assets

IFRS requires management to undertake an annual test for
impairment of indefinite-life assets and, for finite-life assets,
to test for impairment if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not he
recoverable. When testing for impairment of goodwill and other
assets, the carrying amount should be compared with the
recoverable amount. The receverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use.

Impairment testing is an area invaolving management judge-
ment, requiring assessment as to whether the carrying value
of assets can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flow derived frem such assets using cash flow projections
which have been discounted at an appropriate rate, Since there
are nermally no quoted prices available on which to estimate
the fair value less costs to sell an asset, the asset's value-in-
use is usually the value against which the carrying amount is
compared for impairment testing purposes and is measured on
the basis of assumptions and estimates. In catculating the net
present value of the future cash flow, certain assumptions are
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required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters,
including management's expectations of:

« Long-term sales growth rates.

« Growth in adjusted EBITDA.

« Timing and quantum of future capital expenditure.

» Change in working capital.

« The selection of discount rates to reflect the risks involved.

The Group prepares and approves formal long-term manage-
ment plans for operations, which are used in value-in-use
calculations. For the purposes af the calculation, a long-term
growth rate into perpetuity has been determined as:

= Anassumed 3% growth rate for mature markets,

= Aprojected long-term compound annual growth rate for
adjusted EBITDA in 5-10 years estimated by management for
developing countries. Since the Groups business is stable
and includes recurring revenue it is deemed correct {o
include a longer period than five years.

The Group would not have any impairment issues if the
weighted average cost of capital (WACC) used was 1% higher or
if the compound annual growth rate was 1% lower

Changing the assumptions selected by management, in particular
the discount rate and growth rate assumptions used in the
cash flow projectians, could significantly affect impairment
evaluation and hence results, The yearly impairment test of
goodwilt is performed on the closing of the second quarter
aach year.

Measurement of deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities

The Group is liable to pay income taxes in various countries.
The calculation of the Group's total tax charge necessarily
involves a degree of estimation and judgement in respect of
certain tax positions, the resolution of which is uncertain until
an agreement has been reached with the relevant tax authority
or, as appropriate, through a formal legal process. The final
resclution of some of these items may give rise to material
profits, losses and/or cash flows.

The complexity of the Group’s structure following geographic
expansion makes the degree of estimation and judgement
more challenging. The resolution of issues is not always within
the control of the Group and it is often dependent on the
efficiency of the legal processes in the relevant taxing
jurisdictions in which we operate.

lssues can, and often do, take many years to resolve. Payments
in respect of tax liabilities for an accounting period result from
payments on account and on the final resclution of open items.
As 3 result, there may be substantial differences between the
tax charge in the consolidated income statement and tax
payments, including potential tax cash flow impact from future
implementation of local accounting regulation. The Group has
also exercised significant accounting judgement regarding net
aperating loss utilisation.

19



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 cont

Mareover, the Group has exercised significant accounting
Jjudgements regarding the recognition of deferred tax assets.
The recognition of deferred tax assets s based upon whether it
is probable that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be
available in the future against which the reversal of deductible
temporary differences can be realised. Where the temporary
differences related to {osses, the availability of the losses to
offset against forecast taxable profits is alsc considered.
Recognition therefore invotves judgement regarding the future
financial performance of the particular {egal entity or tax group
in which the deferred tax assets have been recognised.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated financial state-
ments in respect of each matter are derived from the Group's
best estimation and judgement as described above. However,
the inherent uncertainty regarding the outcome of these items
means any resolution could differ from the accounting esti-
mates and therefore impact the Group's results and cash flow.

Measurement of provisions and allocation

for accrued expenses

The Group exercises judgement in connection with significant
estimates in relation to staff-related costs and in measuring and
recognising provisions and the exposures to contingent tiabilities
related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims subject
to negotiated settlement, mediation, arbitration or government
regulation, as well as other contingent hiabilities. Judgement is
necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending claim will
suceeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible
range of the financial settlement. Because of the inherent
uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual lasses may be
different from the originally estimated provision.

Depreciation pertod for alarm equipment and amortisation
peried for customear partfaolio

The charge in respect of periodic depreciaticn for alarm
equipment as well as the amortisation of the customer
partfolio, is derived after determining an estimate of expected
usefut life of alarm equipment, established useful life of
customers, and the expected residual value at the end of life. A
decrease in the expected life of an asset or its residual value
results in an increase depreciation/amortisation charge being
recorded in the consolidated income statement. See mare
details in the sensitivity analysis in note 22.
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The useful lives and residual values of Group assets are
determined by management at the time of acquisition and are
reviewed annually for apprepriateness. The lives are based
primarily on historical experience with regards to the lifecycle
of customers, as well as anucipation of future events that may
impact useful Uife, such as changes in technology and macro-
econcmic factors.

Estimate regarding leases
The Group performs several estimates when applying tFRS 16 in
the accounting for leases.

The discount rate used in the present value calculation of all
future cash flows regarding leases is the incrementai barrowing
rate. The incremental borrowing rate depends on a number of
factors including length of lease period and asset type and are
specific for each country.

When the entity has the option to extend a lease, or end the
lease before the contract end date, management uses its
judgement to determine whether or nat an option would be
reasonably certain to be exercised. Management considers all
facts and circumstances including their past practice and any
cost that will be incurred to change the asset if an option to
extend is not taken, to help them determine the lease term_The
extension period have enly been included in the present value
calculation of future iease payments if it is deemed reasonably
certain that the contract will be extended, and if it is deemed
reasonably certain that a end option will be exercised this
period have heen excluded from the calculaticn.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 Segment Reporting

The Group's operating segments are identified by grouping
together the business by revenue stream, as this is the basis
on which information is provided to the chief operating
decision maker (COLM) for the purposes of allocating resources
within the Group and assessing the performance of the Group’s
businesses. The Group has identified the management team as
its CODM. The segments identified based an the Group's
operating activities are customer acquisition, portfolio services
and adjacencies.

The IFRS 15 related revenue recognition adjustment was
reported under SDI during the financial year ending on
December 31, 2018. £ffective January 1, 2019, the Group has
decided to remove this impact from SO and fold it under its
Customer Acquisition segment. 2018 comparatives have been
adjusted accordingly.

2012
Customer Portfolio Total Group
EURthousand . _acquisition - services Adiacencies | -FxclSOL o, 3D TotaiGroup
Revenue 320,098 1,548,935 22,696 1,900,730 - 1900730
Adjusted EBITDA (G16297) 1075348 2035 761086 (58,217) 702,869
Bepreciation and amortisation _” - - (238512) (153081 (388,593)
Retirements of assets - T 7 795 = 195
Ffinanciatitems = oo - foeSes)  la3477) (252,000}
Result beforetax oL - - - 240,256 (254,775) (14,521)
2018
Customer Fortfolio Total Group
EuRtheusand = e e ., ACquistion  services  Adjacencies | -ExclsBi o SDL_ TotalGroup
Revenue 279147 1,329,536 16,167 1,624,849 (12,326) 1,612,525
FRSTS N 7% 7 B ¢ - T X P
B_e_v_em_x_ge_a_sﬁgjusted - 2‘6767,8237 1,3_29,53_6_* ______16_,16_:7 7_1,67127,525 ) -___1,(?1_2,525
Adiusted EBITDA as reported (2650446) 890704  (2322) 622938 (39,389) 583,549
FRSS (zaw - - (aw wam -
Adjusted EBITDA as adjusted (277,768) 890,704 (2,322) 610,614 (27,065) 583,549
Depreciation and amortisation - - - (180,083) (153,209 (333,292)
Retirementsofassets . .. 7 WO - (60,251
Financialitems T - -, bereas)  (106380)  {294,009)
Result befare tax o - - 182,651  (286,654)  (104,002)

Unsatisfied long-term customer contracts

Aggregate amount of the customer contracts revenue aliocated
to long-term customer contracts that are partially or fully
unsatisfied as of December 31, 2019, amounts to EUR 675,558
thousands, compared to EUR 532,217 thousands as of December
31, 2018. As of December 31, 2019, the Group had non-cancellable
customer contracts which resulted in parily unsatisfied
parformance obligations at year-end. Management expect that
55.3% of the transaction price allocated to the partly unsatisfied
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contracts as of December 31, 2019 will be recognised as revenue
during the year 2020, 32.7% is expected to te recognised during
2021 and 12.0% during 2022 or later. The Group does not include
binding revenue with an outstanding contract period of 12
months or less. Since the Group does not incluge all contracts
and has primarily cancellable subscriptions, the amount of the
outstanding unsatished performance ohligation does net
amount to expected revenue for future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 cont

Liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with customers.

Opening balance

Prepayments taken as income
NE\AL;)ILEﬁQByITIEntS o -

to future payments

Installation revenue accrue

Installation revenue from previous periods

Translation effe’crt_

Closing balance

Closing balance consists of:
Non-current liabilities
Current liabitities

Total liabitities

Note 4 Business Combinations

On November 8, 2019, the Group entered into definitive
agreements to create a strategic partnership with Arlo
Technologies, Inc., the #1internet connected camera brand, The
aim of the strategic partnership is to leverage both companies’
capabilities to create incremental scale to address the ever-
growing demand for residential and commercial security. This
transaction, which closed on December 30, 2019 involves the
acquisition of the net assets constituting Arlo’s European
business, with the ambition to enable Verisure to accelerate
adoption of security and surveillance services across Eurape,
as well as bolster Arlo's position as the industry leader in
smart home security solutions. It also includes a supply
partnership for Arlo cameras with intelligent cloud services.
The transaction price related to the acquisition of the net
assets constituting Arlos European business amounted to USD
54 million {approximateiy EUR 48 miilion). The net assets were

Financial effect of the acquisition

. . AL

251936 210,042

o (108,581} {98,139

L wam o

- . 73R 121,828
o ~ (89,680) (109,504}

. I (2163) T
218603 251936

_ _ e83s3 97,574

L om2s 1S3

zmes03 25193

included in the Verisure Tophelding 2 Group as of December 30,
2019,

The valuation of intangible asset is preliminary and wilt be
finalised during 2020,

The full transaction also included the prepayment of future
purchases of materials of USD 20 million (approximately EUR 18
million), reported as prepayments, as well as prepayment of
R&D expenditure of USD 2 million (approximatety EUR 1.8 million).

The transaction is structured as a net asset deal why
information about what these operations would have
contributed to the Groups Income Statement if it had been
included from january 1, 2019 is not available. Transaction costs
of FUR 6.1 million have been expensed and are included in
administrative expenses. These costs are included in cash flow
from operating activities in the statement of cash flows.

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

e 0 EE TR E NI

EUR thousand

Customer portfolic and other intangmle_ f_!_;fgd_gf_get_s__
Inventaries )
Trade and other receivables
frade and other liabilities
Prov{é;ion .

Tota ortifable netassets

Goodwill
Total
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Dec2019

44,950
4,781

935
(2,427)
{15,458)

32,846
15,458
48,304
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Note & cont,

Net cash outflow from acquisition

EUR thousand

L LA TN T T TS CLam T m % Smmee - arihs T e

Consideration paid in cash - I _ .
Less acquired cash L L e
Net cash outflow ) o - ) . 48,304
Note 5 Expenses by Type of Costs

The table below illustrates tha consolidated income statement in summary classified according to type of cost.

EURthousand ) e e e OB 208
Revenue ) ) ) o o 4500730 1612525
Other income 7 - 5,985 B 6974
£mployee benefit expense - _ (738564) (662,390}
Depreciation and amortisation expense o o (388,593) (333,292)
Retirement of assets _ o .. Umgssy (60251
Costofmaterials _ o (78200 {50,093)
Marketing-related costs . __ lnsmse)  (130059)
Other cost . _ o fo1son o (193407)
Totaloperatingcost o .. _(1B69,235)  (1,629,492)
Operatingprofit . . 23480 190,007
ERthousand oo e et L N
Currency translation differences inctuded in aperating profit o _ ess 513
Currency translation differences included in finance income and costs are shown in note 13

Note 6 Audit Fees

EURthousand e e e OO +1J. NP . .-
PwC B o o o e
Audit assignments ) B o 1413 13
Audit work apast from the auditassignment I .. SR |1
Tax consultancy ) o L o 33 620
Other services } o ) 7 225 o 455
Total PwC B o 2,396
Other auditors ) ) o - o

Audit assignments o e . e
Tax consultancy o ) S 3 S 29
Total other auditors L I, L 57
To_t__alfor the Group ) o o 2,231 B 2,453
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Note 7 Employee Information

Average number of full-time equivalent employees {FTEs) by gender

2019 2018
Number of FTES | v el TRl MAle o Total female L Male o Teal
Argentina o _3_7 . M4 ) ot -
Belgium 6 366 492 141 M 455
Brazil s 8% a5 342 679 1,021
Chile S 236 439 675 204 @5 619
Denmark 135 W ez 1 537 671
Finland . s 263 9% 217 313
france g% 187 2,688 693 1,723 2,416
Germany 4 122 169 2% 53 T
taly 30 409 710 204 297 501
The Netherlands ] o 83 e =8 51 67 318
Norway 99 266 365 103 293 396
Pev w0 3w 4s7 105 29 364
Portugal o ) o __2_24» o _ﬁﬁ___ Eﬁ 202 - 434 636
Span 2,388 3792 6,180 2130 3440 5570
Sweden _ 357 642 999 316 567 883
Switzertand 2 3 59 2 26 50
United Kingdom 182 568 750 136 ws  s;:1
Total _ 5805 1339 17144 4905 9936 14,841

2019 2018
MNumberattheend oftheyear ~ ~  ....female  ...rale Jgeal o female o Male  Total
Directars o N - 9 9 - o 8 ) 8
!(_eyexécu_ti_ve management i o - o 5 ___________5___ i 2 9 o 1?
Tetal w1 2 7
Salary casts for employees

2019 2018

Directors Direciors

EUR Thousand ﬁ_;m__vmw;lﬁ_ﬂ_ﬁ_ﬁ_ﬂﬂﬂyﬂ__ﬁgM' . Dther_s . _Tote-a‘l ‘,..f.,.‘gn_rlg, 'E.thf‘;__..,m‘ Others . Totat
Wages and salaries’ 4128 598,761 602,889 8776 479213 487,989
Social secu—rity costs 365 112,420 112,785 aw 98,690 99,518 '
Pension costs 77 22813 22890 352 18,108 18,460
Totalemployee benefitexpense 4869 733995 738,564 9,956 596011 605967

1) Directors and Key executive management
2) Including restructunng costs and other termination benefits.

Note 8 Remuneration of Directors and Key Executive Management

BURKNOUSAN | | ooremmse s s e oo e et e e w0 308
Short-term employee benefits ) L ) &893 9604
Post-employment benefit ) ) - ) N 332
fewt o . w589 9956

The key executive mapagement has a 12 months notice perod corresponding to an amount of EUR 4,701 thousand, compared to EUR 7993 thousands 2018,
The defimtion of key executive management has been updated during 2019,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9 Employee Option Plan

Certain employees of the Group participate in a managemant option plan and are granted options in Shield Luxco 2 5.4 7l as a part
of their compensation. The options vests in installments over a period of maximum five years.

Set out below are summaries of options granted under the plan:

Number of option o . L . e 2019

e S VR 24 e veTRoTIE

Opening balance ) L . e .
335,292
335,292

Granted during the yea.r

Closing balance

No options are exercisable at December 31, 2019 No options expired during the periods covered by the above tables.
Share options outstanding at the end of the year will expiry on the tenth anniversary of the grant date. They were all granted
during 2019

Fair value of options granted

The fair value of the options at grant date is determined using a Black-Scholes model that takes into account the exercise price, the
term of the option, expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for
the term of the option.

Total expenses arising from options issued under employee opticn plan recognised during the period as part of were EUR 184
thousand for 2019,

Note 10 Non-Cash Items

Retirementsof assets’ - 76795 80,251
Other . _n S
Total 76788 60251

1) Relates primarily to retirermnent of installed equipment due to cancellation of customer subscriptions,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11 Leases

The Group leases offices, cars and various equipment under operating leases. From January 1, 2019, the Group has recognised right of
use assets for these leases, except for short-term and low value leases, see below. Cperating lease payments totalled EUR 38.3 miilion
in 2018. The naminal value of future payments due under contracted future operating leases was as feliows as of December 31, 2018:

EUR _tp ou s_a‘n_t_:i

Term to maturity <1year L o

Term to maturity 1-5 years

Term to maturity >5 years
The income statement shows the following amounts related 1o leases during 2019:

EUR thousand

AR Ty ST A AL £ VR P B L 0T B o e e DR AEL L1 L TE R T ) T AT AL qRME L al ome T E

Depreciation charge of right of use assets

Interest expense (inciuded in finance cost)

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in cost of sales, selling expenses and administrative expen

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets that are not shown above as shert-term leases (included in
administrative expenses)
Fotal

ses)

2018

© v a

38,317

78203
33729

Out of the total amount related to depreciation above, EUR 18,037 thousands related to leased buildings, EUR 20,086 thousands to

leased vehicles and EUR 493 thousands to other leased assels.

2019
Short-term Low-value
EUR thousand - ) o e leases  leases
Term to maturity <1year o 108 878
727

Term to maturity 1-5 years

Term to maturity >5 years

The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was EUR 44.4 million. The maturity of the lease liability is shown in note 22, the changes

during the year in the right of use asset is shown in note 17 and the effects of the transition to iFRS 16 is shown in note 31.

Note 12 Depreciation and Amortisation

EUR thousand o et e e et e e e 2019 2018
Property, plant and equipment I _ 85075 saee
Customer portfolio _ 196,692 192,281
Other intangible assets ) o ) o 58210 46,350
Rightofuseassets e : .. 38816 T
Total S S 388,593 333,292
Depreciation and amaortisation is reflected in the income statement as follows:

R R S AN e e o mswmrs o+ 5 m s e -+ S it 2 S5 S A e s A T S s e,
Costofsales . ) L 163,411 131,742
Selling and adminﬁistra}iveiejpenﬁes - ) 225382 201,550
Total , o e .. .388593 333292
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13 Financial Income and Costs

B g VSO 1. UL
(nterest income on other receivables o L o o~ 30,550
[nterest income, other L o 255 335
Finance income o 7 o ) 255 30,885

Interestcoston orrowmgs o i o ) N (186984)77 {179,407)

Interest cost, leasing o . {4,656) N -
Interest cost, other S ) L e tegzmm o)
Interest cost on nterest rate swaps N 777 ) ) o (7,07977)7 (2,‘!00)
Fa|r value chang s |n cusrency derivatives o L o - 14,227 8017
Fair value changes in interest rate derwatlves o ) S - 7(‘1132& (6 398)
Interest element of leases - - 7 S - _(s0)
Net currency translation differences o L B (6 A69) (64,621)
Benkchages o I % M 1)
Other items - R  (28253) (29647)
Finance costs o L - {252,256) {324 B94)
Finance income and costs S ) ) S o - (252,001)  (293,009)

Details of borrowings are presented in note 27,

From time to time, interest rate swaps are used to manage the interest rate profile of the Group's borrowings. Net interest payable
ar receivable on such interest rate swaps is therefore included in interest expense.

Note 14 Income Tax Expense and Benefit

B R NOUSANd s ot ioremn oo - 2erer e vt o O o o e e ) 11 it
Current tax . . _ .. 98 o 3S78% (064 395%
Deferred tax . R o B2 ,,(5{,3'0%) ser2 (15"!_%’.)
Total o 7  {ws40) 314.9% (25392)  24.4%

The Swedish rate of corporate income tax was 21.4% in 2019 and 22.0% in 2018

Difference between Swedish tax rate and actuai tax for the Group

EUR thousand O - 1. A2 . S
Tax calculated at Swedlsh taxrate 3,107 (21.4%) 22,866 (22.0%)
Difference between tax rate in Sweden and weighted tax ratesﬁ - - N
applicable to fareign subsidiaries (3,649} 25.1% (6,831) 6.6%
Non-recognised deferred tax asseté on losses camed forwardﬁ S - . o

new losses as well as utilised losses’ N 77”7(7,7567)7 ) 53.4% (32 391 31.2%
Non-taxable/aon- deductlble income statement |tems net o ‘__(3_7,9_6.1)*7___ o 2551%  (4,697) . 4.5%
Effect of tax rates changed o o m o 23% 253 (2.4%)
Other o o o o (a4) 7 03% i _‘(67,876)7 ~ 6.6%
Fotal o ] N L _ fa5,700} 314.9% (25,392) - 24.6%

1) Whereof EUR 48,852 thousands (28,969 1n 2018} is related to utilised tax fosses carried forward not previously recognised as a deferred tax asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15 Transaction with Related Parties

Transactions between Group companies, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consol:idation and, therefore, are not
required to be disclosed in these financial statements, Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are

disclosed below. All transactions with related parties are at market rates.

Interestincome o o - - 30550
Redemption of shares ) B ) - {1,392619)
Shareholders contribution o % ___
Note 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
2019
R Ol e e et it m et et s ponet T EQUIBMENE Total
Cost at beginning of year o ey 125462 1,228,163
Investments . L _.__ 275879 . 20124 _-_ﬁ’:-‘_-_‘_‘fﬁn
Disposals/retirements of assets o (sug™) R (85,612)
Translation differences . _(3,053) B G R 1/
_(_Iq_st_at__g__r_t_{_:l_q_fyear B - 1,291,&5& o j44,581 o 1,436,037
Arr-1-c;rt-is;a-ti-c_>r_1 at beginning of year o 7 _(4_2_&'3._9@'7; - 7_ 7 (81206) _V o (507,203)
l)"i;bgglrs]r;irrémrentrs of assets . 3738 5. 37,917
Amorti-sation charge for the year S .7 (79.762) (5313) (95075
Translation differences U - L 1170
Accumulated amortisation at end of year ) _ lae7,308) - (95,885) (563,197
Net book vatue at end of year R 824,150 48,696 . 872,846
2018

EUR thousand s et v o o7 v o wemaresri et e EQURTET e DS Jotal
Cost at beginning of year o 945,291 104,384 1,050,675
Investments S 229,577 g 253,374
Disposals/retirements of assets o (62,975) _ (982) _{63957)
Translation differences I _ N U1 2 T) I o n929)
Costatend ofyear L Jvwezzer 28462 1228163
Ampirtisé}@?;t:bgs’;iinining ofyear L 372229y QGow3y 7({*';72.1-572)
Disposals/retirements of assets o N 25,242 o 61t . 25,853
Amortisation charge for the yzar {82,280} {(12,381) (94,661)
Translation differences I J330 0 W 4,057
Accumulated amortisation at end of year S (425,997) (81,208) (507,203)
I:‘Ie_:tﬂqol_( value at end of year ) 676,704 44,256 720,960

Starting in 2019, assets relating to atl leases are classified as right of use asset. The carrying amount of finance leases at

December 31, 2018, was EUR 1,787 thousand and related to property and IT equipment in Spain and France.

Depreciation is based on the asset's cost and is allocated using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life, as follows:

Alarm equipment 5-15 years
Other machinery and equipment 3-10 years

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB AMNUAL REPORT 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 17 Right of Use Assets

EUR thousand

Opening balance at date of transition January 1

New tease contracts

Terminations of lease contracts

Cost at end of year

Opening balance at date of transition January 1

Depreciation charge for the year
Terminations of lease contracts

Translation differences

Accumutated depreciation at end of year

Net book value at end of year

Note 18 Goodwill

EUR thousand

A AT R ITE SERT T 8.t TR TITAr 2

Cost ai:ggimjifn_gﬁgf year o
Investments -
Acquisition via business combinations
Adjustment of purchase price allocation
Translation differences

Costatend ofyear

Impairment testing of goodwill

I e o T PR T na S Ae T

2019
. .. buldngs  Vehices Otherassets  Total
77777957,40677 B 77”7734,486 ‘7|,75f|6 - 131,438
- __'_13,5086 o 29,920 j_22 ‘_7_63,52_6
sy eamo - (6,483)
s 27) 4 s
o 170i78§5 o 61,949 1,672 __;'.!;_-E_.,l;BSH
(18.037)  (20086) “e3)  (38,616)
2&%, 7751797 - - 3,015
w2 1w
) (}5,__53_0)_ _(19,565) (492) ”(735,587")
89,335 42384 1180 112,899
e e 2092018
o 868,557 869,598
77777 ) ) . __2_3 - 313
15458 -
. o o o - 1,196
L o i 2}3 (2.550)
884,261 868,557

For the purpase of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units), which in the Group’s case is by country.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 18 cont.

Goodwill is aliocated to cash-generating units, as follows:

EUR thousand

Brazil

Chile

Denmark
Finland

fFrance

The Netherlands
Norway
Portugal

Spain

Sweden

Total

Impairment tests

Goodwill and other intangible assets are tested for impairment
annualty and whenever there are indications that it may have
suffered imparrment. Goodwiil is considered impaired where its
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of the valua-in-use and the fair vatue less costs to sell
of the CGY or group of CGUs to which it is allocated. No need
for impairment was identified in the yearly impairment test of
goodwilt and other intangible assets in 2019, In each case, the
recoverable amount of all items of goodwill was determined
based on value-in-use calculations,

Management based the value-in-use calculations on cash flow
forecasts derived from the mast recent long-term financial plans
approved by the board of the directers. The principat
assumptions in the value-in-use calculation were those

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANNUAL REPORT 201Y

29,_9_9_1 ) _21,277

15,',713 15,%?

. o . 10J954 7”7777179,954
B L 69,%%1 77777(570,231
51,766 50676

] w3l %03

L L ;6@77 -25&,588“

B -’46&6_5_ _j _46265

) L B ) 777733}3&__ 233126
- s34 670
884,261 868,557

regarding sales growth rates, operating margin. Applied pre-tax
WACC varies between different countries in tha Group. (n 2015,
the lowest rate was 9.6% (9.9% in 2018) in Sweden and the
highest rate was 15.4% {15.9% in 2018) in Brazil. In Norway and
Spain, the countries with the most significant Goodwill values,
the WACC was 9.9% (10.4% in 2018) and 10.7% (10.9% in 2018)
respectively. For the period, subsequent to the long-term plan,
cash flows generated by the CGUs to which significant goodwill
has been allocated have been extrapelated on the basis of a
projected annual growth rate of 3% (3% in 2018). It is not
anticipated that this rate will exceed actual annua! growth in
the markets cencerned. The assumptions regarding WACC are
from internal judgement and benchmarking. The annual growth
rates are based on histarical experience.

30



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 19 Customer Portfolio

Costatbeginning ofyear , o o 2l8s;s 2051023
Investments o o ) 205,044 178,148
Acquisition via business combinations - o h496 -

Disposals/retirements of assets e . Goses) (143m)
Translation differences o o _fazen (8,515)

Cost at end of year . - 2%,356856 2,189,218
Amortisation at beginningofyear o amskem)  (73sen)
Disposals/retirements of assets ) - 11,062 . 9,513
Amortisation charge for the year , o o seeey) (192281
Translation differences - 5 ST
Accumulated amortisation at end of year ) 7 - {1,339,991)  (1,154,938)

Net book value atend of year 1,016,865 1,034,280

Intangible assets arising on acquisitions are principally represented by acquired customer relationships and have finite useful lives.
Gut of the total net bock value, EUR 561,338 thousands {434,767 in 2018) relates to cost to obtain a contract.

Management has assessed the recaverability of the carrying amount of the customer portfolio as of the acquisition date.
The impairment tests are described in note 18.

Note 20 Other Intangible Assets

BURTROUSAND it e e s e et VTP .| S

Cost at beginning of year L . o 3o

Investments L o L .S0066 6
Acquisition via business combinations ) ) 40,014 -
Disposals/retirements of assets o o - B o (3w
Translation differences R oo ey (a7
Costatend ofyear o 503,604 373,917
Amortisation at beginning of year 7 o __(_2_0_.6,}_41 - (15788)
Disposals/retirements of assets . L Lo T 261
Amortisation charge fortheyear o o ) o {ss2im {46,345}
.Ir)anslatiorjrdifferencei; o - o ) - 126 - 3532
Accumulated amortisation at end of year (264,428)  (206,344)
Netbook value atend of year - —_. B 23976 167573

Qut of the total book value, EUR 134,236 thousand {99,406 in 2018) relates to internally developed intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 21 Deferred Tax

B R A i mm s e e e e———— <+ ot aon a1 e e+ e et OB
Temporary differences arising between the tax bases a_r_yg__ca_rry_irge_i_mgqn_ts_ I, -7 ) 15,774
Staff-related liabilities ) 2486 1728
Risk reserves i L 1,162
Taxloss carry-forwards . e .. .353%% 19136
Acquisition-related intangitle assets s 293
Other temporary qifferencesr 38528 4,758
Total deferred tax assets - S 94759 65,492
Netting o ) - (63,932) (36,625)
Jotal o o 30,827 28,867
B R O TS mk s is s miscs st s s s i © 1P S o 5Tttt o 4 o S L.
Temporary differences arising between the tax bases and carrying amounts _ . 45677 (38,050
Acquisition-related intangible assets? 7 o 96,100 132,042
Customer acquisition costs o 134,017 105,032
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 15 U T
Adjustment on adoption of IFR3 9 . 4393 ~203N
Gther temporary differences o ) 24,040 21,356
Total deferred tax liabilities B i ) 314,227 291,076
Netting' -  (e3m) (3629)
Total o S 250,295 254,451
Net deferred tax liabilities 7 o o _ {nvue8) (22&5_851

1) The Group has offset deferred tax assets and liabilities on the consclidated statement of financial position where a right to offset existed
2) Deferred tax has decreased due to amortisation of the acquisition-related intangible assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax less carry- amounted to EUR 1874 million {198.7 in 2018) and deferred tax
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax assets related to the tax loss amounted te EUR 35.4 million {391
benefit through taxable profits is probable. Cn December 31, in 2018). A time limitation in respect of tax loss carry-forward
201%, the Group had tax ioss carried forward of EUR 734.4 utilisation exists in Argentina, the Netherlands, Norway and in
million {744.5 in 2018). As of December 31, 2019, tax loss carry- Switzertand. No such limitation exists in the other countries.

forwards for which deferred tax assets had been recognised

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANNUAL REPORT 201 37



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 22 Financial Risk Management

The Group's business activities create exposure to financial
risks, such as credit risk, liquidity risk, financing risk, interest
rate risk and foreign currency risk, as detailed in the sections
below.

The Group treasury policy states how financial risks should be
managed and controlled. Where appropriate and needed risk
management is carried out using derivative financial instruments
in accordance with the timitations set out in the treasury
policy.

The treasury policy contains gudelines for the admintstraticn
of operating risks that anse in the management of financial
instruments, The guidelines include clear division of roles and
responsibilities and the zilocation of proxies. The management
of financial risks has been centralised to the Group treasury
department. Group treasury’s responsibilities includes external
banking relatians, finance costs, interest-bearing liabilities and
liquidity management,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss if the counter party with which the
Group has a claim, 15 unable to Fuifil its obligations. These risks
are appartioned between credit risk from trade receivables
and cregdit risk from financial receivables. The Company limits
financial credit risk by only entering transactions with banks
with a high credit rating. Investments of cash and cash
equivalents are made only with banks with a minimum &
rating according to Standard & Poor's.

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AR AMNUAL RLPORT 2010

Maximum credit exposure representing the value of the Group
trade receivables at the end of December 2019 was EUR 208,843
thousand (187,006 in 2018).

Credit risk fram trade receivables

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk in
relation to trade receivables. The Group's credit policy ensures
that credit management includes use of cradit ratings, credit
limits, decision-making structures and management of
doubtful clatms The policy's goal is to ensure that sales are
made only 10 customers with an appropriate credit rating.
While the trade receivables closely follow the geography of
Group aperations, there are no significant concentrations of
credit risk by customer as the Group has a targe number of
customers in many countries that are not individually significant
or related. Management believes that no further credit risk
provision is required in excess of the narmal provision for bad
and doubtfui receivables. For more details, see note 24.

Financial credit risk

The Group applies principles that limit the size of its credit
exposure to individual banks or counterparties. Cash and cash
equivalents may only be invested in government bonds or
deposited in banks with a minimum A rating according to
Standard & Poor's.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nate 22 cont.

Financial instruments by category and valuation {evel

FLTE e LT m A NS et LATRIRSm Tas vy Tm e

EUR thousand

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Derivatives’

Curre ncyifo_rwar_disr - _ o 28-;'5,3_
Financial liabilities at fair value through profitor loss L -
Derivatives’ o o

Currency forwards o ) s
Interest rate swé;ralf‘r S ) ) o 17,720
Total B o _ - - 10,373
Loans and receivables atraﬁrrllgrj:ii:r.eq cast e

Trade and other receivables - -  1an
Trade recéivablés N N _155_.0?5:_
Oth.é-r-currén-{mr"e-ceivable_s i 77 i o e ]13,67'7I737
Cash and cash equivalent L I 2781
Other financiat liabilities at amortisedmcg;tr o
Lo-n-é-:;:;r-m b-dr-rowingszlf__ e L - 4948800
Other non-current lriaBirlitireEW - N _7114:_5]1__
Trade payables? S - 139086
gwiorrt-tierm bdr;oWiﬁés’ o o ) 77777%777971,72-6”
Other current liabilities ) ) 29955

75,764

133,620
10,938
8823

4,573,202
120,310
123.237

42913
29,572

1) All derivatives measured at fair value are classified in (evel 2. All significant inputs are observable. Currency forward are measured at fair value
using the observed forward exchange rate for contracts with a corresponding term to maturity at the statement of financial position date.

2} Details of borrowings are presented in note 27

1) Fair value for the listed bond amounts to EUR 1,787 million, which is the quoted market price at the balance sneet day Since itis a guoted market

price in an active market it is classified as level 1

Due to the short-term nature of trade receivables, current receivables, trade payables, short-term borrowings and other current

liabilities, their carrying amount is assumed to be the same as their fair valuve.

Interest bearing liebilities per currency

EURthousand 2019

Long-term borrowings {principal amount)

EUR liabilities -

SEK liabitities 368,358
Other currencies 7 o 12834

T;Jtal_ - _--- - L - . 7 L S,OGB,Sﬁ
Short-term borrowings L I .

EUR liabilities S _ - _BOAGT
SEK liabilities S I 306

Other currencies S o B 6,953
Total _ » N 91,726

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANNUAL REPORT 2019

488231

2018

L P A U B N % N P AT T 5 TSNS SEERT R I L L0 ik 4T A e MR T LT ST T SEISETE A 4 AT S 2 L PRLE R o

4,570,182
160,900

4,731,082
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 22 cont.

Credit facilities as per December 31, 2019

Lineofcredit e e eme iy, COrrency o Facilityamount Availableamount  Maturity
Revolver Credit Facility (RCF) _ Multicurrency (EUR) 300000 74920 2022
Term loan & . BUR 3052000 s T Ll 2022
Bond o . EURrR 500,000 B - 2023
Senior Unsecured Notes {SUN) . EUR 1,080,000 7 - 2023
Senior Unsecured Notes (SUN) _ SEK 1650000 1 )
Credit facilities as per December 31, 2018
e, SurTROEY Wityamount ~ Avaitableamount ~ _ Maturity

Multicurrency (EUR) 300,000 227940
Jerm loan & o EUR _._ 392000 -
Bond B o EUR B 300,000 -
Senior Unsecured Notes (SUN) EUR 4080000 -
Senior Uasecured Nates (SUN)_ o SEK 1,650,000 ) -

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk an entity will encounter difficulty in
meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities, The
Group's borrowing facitities are monitored against forecast
requirements and timely action is taken to put in place, renew or
replace credit lines. Management's policy is to reduce liquidity
risk by diversifying the funding sources, securing ample funding
is available and staggering the maturity of its borrowings.

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANNUAL REFCRT 2012

Financing risk

Financing risk relates 1o encountering difficulty or incurring
greater expense in refinancing outstanding borrowings. The risk
is minimised by analysing and monitoring the maturity
structure of external [oans.

The table below analyses the Group's non-derivative financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financiat liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance s_hepl date to the contractual maturity date.
Derivative financial liabitities are included in the analysis if thesr
contractual maturity dates are essential for an understanding of
the timings of future cash flows. The amounts presented in the
table are the contractual and undiscounted cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 22 cont.

Liguidity report

EUR thousand

BT T R TR B T T

Liabilities to cred\t institutions, pr:nc|pal amounts
Interest payments borrowings

Interest payments derivatives?
Other non-current liabilities
Lease 'uabm‘ues
Trade payables

Derivatives, currency forwards

Other current liabilities

Totai outﬂow

Other non-current recewables
Trade receivables
Derivatives, currency forwards
Interest denvatlves

Other cuirent recewables
Total inflow

Net cash flow, total!

EUR thousand

TP A T S T L SO T e AT TR 28 P Rk 5

Liabilities to credit institutians, princ:pal amounts

Interest payments borrowings
interest payments derivatives?

Other non-current liabilities
Trade payables L
Derivatives, currency forwards )
Other current liabilities

Total outflow

Other non-current receivables
Trade receivables
Derivatives, currency forwards
Interest derivatives

Qther current receiva bles
Total inflow

Net cash flow,

otal’

SR 3T T R LI T TR SYTCITG SO D AT

2019
L ) _,I:e_is_ tt\a_n_zlg_a{ o 11:1-» Z.ears 5years CLTEre Total
- (33708)  (a971461) - {5,005,169)
(186,617) (-’..07488) - {594,099)
(o5 556) ~ Qan2e) - (24,682)
= (114 570 - {114,571)
o (36,559 (62398)  (29,65)) (133,910}
B 7(139,086)‘ = - (139,086)
) {2z82000 - - (228,201)
- (2999) - - (29,955)
L i _(664 976) __(_55575,_04_@)___ (29,653) {6,265,673)
o = 77,773 658 78,431
54075 - - 154,075
) 232 88y - - 232,883
2 681 306 = 2,987
) 15 &3 - - 15,613
405 252 78,079 658 483,989
(259,723)  (5496965)  (28995) - (5,785,683)

2018
Lgss than 1 year 1-4 years 5 years or more Total

(27,213)
(184,372)
3, 100)

(8.250)
(29,572}

(377,744)

133,620

Jo.gsz

_ 1790
10,938

{73082y = {s,758,295)
I L (763,878)
_ {n,805) = {14,905)

{120,310) - {120,310)
= - {125237)
. _(w0.000) - (182s0)
ST o (95712)
(5,452,703) - (5,830,447)
64135 n629 75,764

- - 133,620
wan ;——— 22313

4,531 - 5,721

- - 10,938
80,887 - m629 248,356
(_5,3_71_,_315) . 1,629 (5,582,091)

(221 904)

(125237)

155,840

1) All contractual cash Rows per the batance sheet date are included, including future interest payments.

2} Including interest rate swaps.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 22 cant.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises in its long-term borrowings,
Borrowings raised at variabte interest rates expose the Group
to interest rate risk. Borrowings raised at fixed interest rates
expase the Group to fair value interest rate risk. During 2019
and 2018, the Group's borrowings at variable interest rate were
denominated in the Swedish krona and the Euro.

At December 31, 2019, with current financing tecms which partially
include an interest floor of 0%, an increase of EURIBOR/STIBOR
fixings of 100 basis points {1.0%) will impact the Group's total
interest expenses by a negative EUR 3 million. Part of the variable
interest rate exposure has been hedged.

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates in 16 countries and is therefore exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures
but primarily from SEK and NOK. Foreign exchange risk arises
through business transactions, reported assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign currencies and affects the
atance sheet as weil as the income statement.

Change

AT AR, B 2 g 4 AT %l

Variable

AT I TP I T Y ST e L T e

Depreciation and arportjsathnﬁ +/j 10 percentage point

Interest rate _ +/=1percentage point

Currency rate EUR/SEK +f-10 percentage ppfnt

Currency rate EUR/NOK +/- 10 percentage point
Capital structure

Asset management is aimed at ensuring that the Group's
financial resources are used in an optimal way so as to
guarantee future operations, provide security for lenders and
generate a beneficial return for shareholders. Asset
management additionally aims ta ensure that the Group has
sufficient funds to finance necessary investments for continued
growth. This growth can be organic or via acquisition which
means financial flexibility is requrred.

EUR thousand ~ e

Long-term barrowings (principal amount)

Less accrued interest

Less cash and cash equivalents
Less financial recefvabie. current
Netdebt
Less lease liability 7
Net debt per SFA lender documentation
Toatassets
Adjusted EBITDA

Portfolio EBITDA

The Group’s risk in business transactions primarily constitutes
material purchases in US dollars. The exposure is continuously
monitored and during 2019 the Group hedged a part of this
exposure.

The Group's net assets in foreign gperations are exposed 1o
foreign exchange risk. Such foreign exchange risk is mainly
managed through borrowings raised in the foreign currencies in
question, The Group does not apply hedge accounting to its net
investments in foreign cperatians, for which reason the
translation of borrowings in SEK impacts the income statement.
Cross cufrency swaps are used to convert Euro denominated
debt inte Swedish krona debt exposure while plain currency
swaps are used to minimise interest expenses charged by banks
in the cash pool structures.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group's sales and results are subject to a variety of factors.
The effect of changes in a number of key variables is shown
below. Projections are based on the Group’s operations in 2019
and should be viewed as an estimate of the effect of an
isolated change in each vaniable

Effect o ) o o o
Decrease/increase of approximately EUR 39 (33 in 2018} million
__in operating result.

Decrease of approximately EUR 3 {10 in 2018) million
_innetfinanceincomeandcosts. .

Increase/decrease of approximately EUR 24 (23 in 20718) million

n revenueg.

Increase/decrease of approximately EUR 7 (9 in 2018) million

inoperating resule. N B
tncreasefdecrease of approximately EUR 13 (43 in 2018) mitlion
in revenue.
increase/decrease of approximately EUR & (6 in 2018} million
in operating result. .
The credit facility includes covenants that must be fulfilled for the
duration of the loans. The existing financial maintenance
covenant applies only when outstanding under the RCF (the
Revolver Credit Facility) exceed EUR 100 million. When this incurs
the ratio of Net Debt over adjusted portfolio EBITDA during the
last two quarters annualised cannot exceed 5.0x, {6.2x in 2018). As

per end of year 2019 this ratio was 4 .5x.

e 208 2018
L S,EE?'SE‘I 4,731,082

] e o

A v N O

. (12,781} (8.,629)

L o o e -
o 5126289 4,749,666
o C__bmgg -
892379 4,749,866

o . _ 3671739 3218933
_ . . m2869 583549

1,075,348 890,704

Detartls of borrowings are presentad in note 27. For covenant purpases other defiritions apply.
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NOTES 7O THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 23 Inventories

EUR thousand 3 v s - 2019

T U P AU ¢ TGS TR, S B L T T e TR M A W L. m .

Mgterials and consumables _12_6.?7?77

e i tAmar eI L

2018

102,488

impairment for prevision in inventories at year end totalted EUR 4,397 thousand (1,446 in 2018). The cost of materials recognised as

an expense and included in “cost of sales” was EUR 57,620 thousand (50,093 in 2018) at December 31, 2019,

Not 24 Trade Receivables

Non-current

EUR thousand ) J— = T e A e €8 s RS AL S & Tk s e @ e S e h % e .wi'ﬂgm.&-h—dﬁriglg--
Trade receivables before provision for bad debts _ 62337 55926
Provision for bad debts S o 7 (7569 (2,?50)7
Total 7 - sums 53,386
Current

[ELR thousand reor e e creeip £ A S P 1 5 L AR 013 Aot 0 S ST e . < pe e OB
Trade receivables before provision for bad debts - 207421 18G374
Provision for bad debts _ o (53348) (46,694)
Total L o 54075 133620
Due dates for trade receivables

BURINOUSAND o mions v mss e s i omemssmtt - 30 om0 o 5 e A o83 05 i 1t DA 2018
Past due 0-3 months o ) o o 19188 13,369
Pastdue 3-6 months L o217 5,884
Pas-tdué_é_—é months . . 1osc 774;,8794
Past due 9-12 months _ . 0634 3941
Past due >12 months L e o 44403 _ 31053
Total past due dates trade receivables ol L . 87532 59,141
Provisions for bad debts

EUR thousand_ N . e ‘ 2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year _ _ - Lo A%234 w3
Provision for bad debt during the year o 25073 13573
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible e haey (2996
Unused amounts reversed o - . (12,045)  {2668)
Balance at end of year o S 60,915 49,234

Customer credit {osses recognised in the income statement totalled EUR 28.4 million (20.1 in 2078} at December 31, 2019,

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANMUAL REPORT 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 25 Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are held in relation to the Group's treasury policy. The Group does not hold or issue derivatives for
speculative purposes. The Group’s objective is to minimise the risk of adverse impact on the income statement due ta interest
rates rises. For this purpose, the Group will enter into interest rate derivatives to minimise this risk. The carrying amounts of
derivative financial instruments held by the Group were as follows:

2019 2018

BURINOUSANG e o e i m s SSS LBOITISS e N o PSSRS L HIEOES e et
Hedgingactivitlesr o o - -
Currency forwards . 888 75 28,093 10603 376 13,857
Interest rate swaps = 7720 (17,720 - 6398 (6,398)
Total . 28168 12795 10,373 = 17,603 10,144 7,459
Cl_assn;ﬁed a§ ) e o o

N_On-cgf‘rent 2}&) o ]7,720 o 5,690 17,603 o 61319§ B 11,2057
Current S 4,758 o __75 __j§_83_ - 3£’Q§ _(3,746)
To;al ) o L‘lﬁﬁ______‘_i_?_,?95 ____3373 17,603 o _10;&0&77 , 71,‘159

Currency derivatives

As at December 31, 2019, the noticnai prin¢ipal amount of
outstanding foreign exchange contracts used to manage the
Group's cash pool was EUR 215.4 million (2077 in 2018) and cross

purpases as of December 31, 2019. Accordingly, atl gains and
tosses are recognised in the income statement in respect of
currency derivatives outstanding. Such amounts are inctuded

currency swaps was EUR 275.0 million {2750 in 2018), The Group in finance income and cost as disclosed in note 13.

has no outstanding contracts designated for hedge accounting

Note 26 Share Capital

Verisure Topholding 2 AB’s share capital totalled EUR 6,577 at December 31, 2019, distributed among 2,260 shares with a quotient
value of EUR 2.91. Ali shares are of the same class. All shares issued by the Company were fully paid.

Change in number of shares

B R I o < ooe o cres s AT £ttt S 2 o5 A L 2008
Number of shares at beginning of year L 2260 3,333
Redeemed shares : . 0073
Number of shares at end of year o o 2,260 27260

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANMNUAL REPORT 201y 19



NOTES TO THE CONSOCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 27 Borrowings

2019 2018
Adjustment Adjustment

Princspal amortised Carrying Principal amaortised Carrying
EURTNOUSAND e om0 2 QUNL S 2MONNL L RORTE ATt
Non-current liabilities e .
Secured ) 7 o 77% L -
Senior Secured Notes 500,000 LJ,D?),, 498,291 300,000 (2,726) 297,274-
Term Loan B’ 13,092,000 (106,035  2,985965 3092000  (140,947) 2,951,053
Revolve_r Credit Facili:ty 126,954 (2,815) 124,139 72,966 77({1{,72@) __;53,705
Unsecured S ) o o
Senior Unsecure Naotes 1237942 _{o153) 1,228,789 1260500 {(9947) 1,230,953
Ljabiljties to other creditors ‘ _1_456§ - 14,565 26437 . 77&,&37
Lease liability 97,051 - 97,051 - - -
Finance lease liability i - - - 79 o - 779
Long-term borrowings 506851 (119711) 4948800 4731082 (157880) 4573202
Current liabilities -
Accrued interest expenses 231 - B 20,700 - 20,700
Other liabilities 33708 - 33,708 2690 . 2o
Lease liability o L 36,859 - 36859 - - -
Finance lease liability ) ] - - - 299 - 299
Shortterm borrowings 91726 - 9w 48B3 - 498
Total 5160,237 (971 5,040,526 4,778,995  (157,880) 4621115

1) Of the total amount regarding adjustment amortised costs 2018, EUR (70,717 thousands, {98,652} in 2018, relates to a non-cash adjustment derived
from the modification of loan terms during the loans contract periogd calculated according te IFRS 9.

The Group's secured harrowings are jointly and severally, irrevocably and fully and unconditionally guaranteed by certain of the
Company's direct and indirect subsidiaries and secured by liens on substantially all of their assets. An analysis of the security

given is presented in note 30.

Net Debt Bridge

EUR thousand

Total principal amount (as above)
Lre’ss arccrqeg Interest

Indebtness

Less financial recevabie, current
Less cash and cash egy__iyal_ents .
Net debt

Less lease liability

Net debt per SFA _lqugifj_oc__pmgﬂi_:_ation_

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB AKNUAL REPORT 201¥

v =T e g

A 5§ TR, R LS

2019 . 201_3

5160237 4,778,995
(s (z0700)
_5M9,078 4,758,295
I ) -

(12,781) ) ] (3,529_)_

. 5126289 449,666
_ me;g) -
4992379 4749666
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 27 cont.

Borrowings, currency and interest rate profile
The currency and interest rate profile of outstanding borrowing principals, after taking into account the effect of the Group's
currency and interest rate hedging activities, was as follows:

Floating interest rate Fixed interest rate
Weighted Wweighted  Weighted average
EUR average EUR average period for which Total EUR
2019 o ) thousa_ndA .lnge‘rg'st rate % thousand interestrate rateis ﬁxeq, years  thousand
EUR o 7 - 1,492.277 - 6.8% 3,080,000 - 2.6% o 73~3 - 4,572,227
SEK ) 432,943 777777774‘6% o - = - l_r_?_.2,9£;3
T(Eai N B 1,925,170 ~ - 3080000 - .~ 5005170
Floating interest rate Fixed interest rate
Weighted Weighted  Weighted average
EUR EUR average period for which Totat EUR
2018 e . ] thouwsqu‘ % ‘thousand interestrate % rate is fixed, years  thousand
EUR o B 1,817,000 2,380,000 3% A4 4,197,000
SEK 435900 . - T 435,900
To_ta__i__ o 2,252,900 - 2,380,000 - - 4,632,900

The majority of all borrowings with floating interest include a floer of 0% which means the applied interest fixing of Euribor and
Stibor will equal 0% as long as the relevant period fixings of Euribor and Stibor are below 0%.

Obligations under finance leases
Starting January 2019 the Group reports altl leases as a right of use asset and a lease liability. The maturity of the lease liability is
included in the Liquidity report in note 22

The naminal value of future payments due under contracted future finance leases was 2018 as follows:

EUR thousand 2018
o TR TR BT L e+ NS AT S £ FSEATP S Lo L AR L RLPARLI L P L i S S NS E 3 | 7 SO S e S SR e SR
Term to maturity <1year - S 298
Term to maturity 1-5 years A . 7

Term to maturity > 5 years 7 _

The Group leases certain of its facilities and IT equipment n Spain and France under finance leases. All these lease are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets.

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANNUAL REPORT 2010 1



NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 27 cont.

Cash flows related to berrowings
Non-Cash changes

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANMUAL REFOQRT 2010

Changein Lease
Carrying adjustmeni contracts Foreign Carrying
amaunt amortised New lease terminated exchange Mew accrued amount
E!R_thoggf\_nq_s‘_ o lan 1, 2018 _Cash ﬂows - cos} - _vcog:racts o EVQQY?HCE __movement iit‘grest Dec 31, 2019
Long-term borrowings 4572423 2511,116 3869 - - (2,959) - 4,851,749
Short-term
borrowings w9%  679% - - - - 33708
Accrued interest ‘o700 o Q@ogoo) - = - I 4h 21,159
Lease liabitities 129,024 (34,589) - _41 goo (37me) {3y 132,380
Total liabilities 4709061 195621 38169 41800 (3716)  (3098) 217959 5038,99
Cash and cash - o
equivalents - {seze) (a5 - - ] - = - {12782)
Totai cash__ o Meg29) @SR - - - @ - {1278
Total _ 4780432 191470 38769 41,800 (3716)  (3100) 21359 5,026,214
Non-Cash changes
Change in
Carrying adjustment Foreign New Carrying
amount Casn amortised exchange accrued amount
EURtI_musands_ o o o Jan12018 ﬂgw_s N ’_v__coit‘ _.'793’?'7',9;'?.{ o _mterest Dec 31,2018
Long-term borrawings } 6M1592 553377 (85787)  (6759) - 4512423
Short-term borrowings o 29420  (2,508) - s - 126,914
Accrued interest 23388 7(723,7795)777 ) - 20,700 20,700
Finarcial lease ] o 1655 _ (577) - = o 1,078
Total liabilities - 4155 862 527,099 (85,787) (6,759) 20,700 4,621,115
Cash and. cash equwalents o {14,257} 8512 - mo - (8,629)
Total cash ) (14,252) 5512 - 112 - (8,6_2_22
Total o 4,151,610 s53z6m (85.787) ) (ﬁ.ﬁft?_)_ 20,700 4,612,486
Note 28 Other Provisions
EUR thousand i Sak LTI BT ¥~ e s ACS o TR s T TR AT AL AL R ERORERR I Ry oo SR N Y 2019 vaLT 2018
Balance at beginning of year o o o 3,278 2,319
Additional provisions o ) - o 23,882 LB46
Utilised provisions e _(2,009) (687)
Balance atend ofyear e o 2504 3278
Breakdown
EURthousand S o e b s A R 11 B U L. S L I
Prowsl!_on for staff related costs _ o 3,724 2558
r marketing related ¢ costs 5438 -
Prowsuon for service related costs B 10,000 -
Other items - 5,859 620
Total 25,141 3,278
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 29 Accrued Expenses and Deferred Income

Subscription fees invoiced in advance _ _ - 190,250 154,362
Staff-related costs N } .. 105,836 87,612
Marketing-related costs o o 15435 7,264
Goods received o o } _ as93 7.901
Audit assignments and other services - o . h23% _ 1,260
Risk reserves L 7 o ___. . aIn _ 4,889
External services _ o 30694 2228]
Other items _ _ .. 51483 30,566
Total _ 426,594 316135

When the Group receives a payment but has not dgelivered the promised service a contract liability arise, which consist of deferred
income for prepaid installation and services. A contract liability is accounted for until the performance obligation is performed or
fail due for the customer to use, and is then reported as a revenue. Refer to note 3 for more information.

Note 30 Pledged Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Pledged assets

BURTROUSANG. o oo oemuces s e 2 e e s~ et i 201 2018
Endowment insurance _ S . ... %8 be4
Shares in subsidiaries _ - 2000193 1,972,560
Bank accounts . I I ... 696 _..503
Tradpm.‘-\rrk 48,333 53,333
Accounts receivabies o . 93684 74,195
Inventgries L _ e . ____ _ 6088 61,816
Motorvehicles o _ _ I w8 0.
Contingent (iabilities

EU}! thousand o ) o ) o . 2019 2018
Guarantees _ 29645 25,068

The Group has pledged shares in subsidiaries, certain bank accounts, certain trade receivables, certain IP rights, certain inventory
assets, certain intra-group loans, intra-group equity certificates, rights under certain insurances, certain rights under the acquisition
agreements regarding the purchase of the Group and cariain rights under reports in relation to the acquisition of the Group as
collateral for bank borrowings, as disclosed in note 27 Guarantees relate primarily to guarantees provided to suppliars.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 31 Changes in Accounting Policy

Qn January 1, 2019 the Group changed the accounting principles
for leases, by applying [FRS 16 Leases, which supersedes IAS 17
Leases. IFRS 16 was issued 1n January 2016 and the standard
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. in accordance with the
new standard, the Group recognises a liability to make lease
payments (i.e. the lease liability) and an asset representing the
right to use the underlying asset during the lease terms (i.e. the
right of use asset).

The Group has decided to apply the simplified transition
approach and therefore has not restated the comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

IFRS 16 results in most leases being recognised on the balance
sheet by lessees, as the distinction between cperating and
finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recagnised. The exceptions to this are short-term

Effects on consolidated income statement

EUR thousand

Adjusted EBITDA
Amortisation and write off
Operating profit

Financial items

fncome l_:uefore tax

Effects of consolidated statements of financial position

EUR thousand

and low-value leases which instead are reported as lease
payments and as operating expenses in the income statement.

The Group’s lease agreements are mainly atiributable te buildings
and vehicles. As from the transition to IFRS 16, they are accounted
for as right of use assets and long-term and short-term lease
liabitities {included in long-term borrowings and short-term
borrowing) in the consolidated balance sheet. The lease lizbilities
on January 1, 2019 have been measured at the present value

of the remaining lease payments, disccunted by using the
incremental borrowing rate. The incremental borrowing rate is
dependent on a number of factors such as length of lease
period and asset type and it is atso specific for each country.
Extension clauses are evaluated for each lease agreements and
are applied based on our best estimate at each closing.

The effects on the consclidated income statement and the
consolidated statements of financial position fram the
adoption of IFRS 16 are specified in the table below.

Right of use assets
Total non-currentassets =
Prepayments and accrued income
Total current assets

]’_o_tal assets

Total equity

Long-term borrowings

Total non-current liabilities

Short-term borrowings
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANNUAL REPORT 2012

e 2 e e R R Ak o e
41,431
) - ) 77”7(55,367)
- - {4656)
N o ey
Adjustment ~
Dec 31,2018 - IFRS16—-Asof jan1, 2019 -
- As {gpo'rlgig”mﬂj“a‘r_l 1,2019 Adjusted
i - 3438 131438
) 3,145,181 131,438 3,276,619
o 34553 @aw) s
30531 A) 302,899
B 3,450,494 129,024 3,579,518
 (2,048,783) - _(2,048,783_)_
4573202 99710 o 4672912
) 4,957,640 99,710 5,057,350
47913 29374 77,227
541,637 2937 570,851
3450494 129024 3579518
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nate 31 cont.

Bridge hetween operating leases and lease liability under IFRS 16
FURthousand .. .
Assumption for operational leasing as of December 31, 2018
Liability for financing leases as of December 31, 2018
Short-term leases and low value leases

Adjustments due to other handling of options to extend or terminate agreements
Discounting with the Group's marginal borrowing rate (3.35% average)

Lease liability as of january 1, 2019 o

Note 32 Events After the Reporting Period

o i et e o I Tew. £ IAATI G T M TA - AATEEET T TR SEaiToi a e -

e TR T_BET I I e R et

Jan 1,2019

150,849

RALCE
(8,805)
179
(16.277)

12902

fn Q1 2020, Cristina Rivas was appointed as Group Chief Technotogy Officar. Cristina joined Verisure as Technology Director for
iberia and Latin America in 2016 from Vodafone, where she was Head of Group Technology Strategy and Governance, having held
several senior pesitions in Vodafone Spain in customer service, sales and marketing. Before Vodafone, Cristina worked on strategy,
marketing and operational efficiency projects acress telecommunications, banking and energy at McKinsey. Cristina halds a
Master's degree in Telecommunications Engineering from the Universidad Potitécnica in Madrid.

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANNUAL REPCRT 201y
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PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Parent Company
Financial Statement

Parent Company Income Statement

EUR thousand o Note 2019

[ PR v e = BT s STLamere . 3T ERETA L TG SR T SIATTY GRS T T T R O TRESE Tk xSRI TEATI RS BT S e

Administrative expenses o o ) ) - -

Operatingprofit_ R e -
Financial inco_rﬁéi o o o o 2 o 10 ) 1,066
Financial cost e s 24 & (133

Dividend o o 4 - 352,532

Grqupcontribut;i_c;'_n'_ﬂ_'____ o o - 4 ) {1,066)

Result beforetax S s 351,399
Vlnrcomé't;xaﬁg[gje: ] S T e -
Result for theperiod L C e B 391399
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PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Parent Company Statements of Financial Position

EUR thousand Note 2019 2018
Assets

Non-current assets o

Long-term investments L B

Investments in subsidiaries " 3 2,416,079 2415910
Total non-currentassets . N ~ 2,416,079 2,415,910
Current assets - o T
Cash and cash equivalents 12 15
J’g_t_gt current ass_gE_ 12 ] 15
Iﬂ{ a_fi'ﬁs_ . 2,416,091 2,415,925
EUR thousand Note 2019 2018
Equity and liabilities . N
Equity . 26 )

Share capital 7 7
Retained earnings N o 2,184,336 2,184,172
Total equity e 2,184,343 2,184,179
Non-current liabitities - ﬂ;::_ ﬁ - ~

Qther non-current liabilities 4 231748 231,578
Total non-current liabilities e 231,748 231,578
Camvent liabilities R ) -
Current tax liabilities ‘ - 168
Tatal current liahilities - 188
Total equity and liabilities 2,416,091 2415925

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity hokders of the parant company

Share Retained
EUR thousand capital earnings Total
Balance at January 1, 2019 7 2,184,172 2184179
Shareholder contribution - 169 169
Result for the period - {5) {5}
Balance at December 31, 2019 7 2,184,336 2,184,343

Attributable to equity holders of the parent company

Share Retained
EUR thousand capita’ earnings Tatal
Balance at January 1, 2018 7 3,224 605 3,224,612
Bopus issue 9 {9) -
Redemption of shares [€) (1,392,619) (1,392,628)
Merger - 796 796
Result for the period - 351,399 351,399
Balance at December 31, 2018 7 2,184,172 2,184,179
Parent Company Statement of Cash Flows
EUR thousand 2019 2018
Operating activities
Operating profit L - -
Paid taxes {158) -
Cash flow from operating activities before change in working capital (158) -
Cash flow from change in working capital - -
Cash flow from operating activities {158) -
Investing activities
Cash flow from investing activities - -
Financing activities )
Net interest paid - 8
Loans from Group companies 155 -
Cash flow from financing activities 155 8
Cash flow for the period (3) 8
Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 15 7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 12 15

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TQ THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Parent Company

Financial Statements

Note 1 Accounting Policies

The Parant Company Verisure Topholding 2 AB's financial accounting principles as the Group, which are described in the
statements are prepared in accordance with the Swedish Groups note 1. There are no relevant differences between the
Annual Accounts Act and the Swedish Financial Reporting Groups and the Parent Company’s accounting principles.
Board's standard RFR 2 Accounting for Legal Entities. RFR 2

states that the Parent Company should apply International 2019 is the first year that Verisure Topholding 2 AB applies the
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) approved by the EU, as Swedish Annual Accounts Act and the Swedish Financial

long as this is consistent with the Swedish Annual Accounts Reparting Board's standard RFR 2 Accounting for Legal Entities,
Act, the Swedish Act on Safeguarding of Pension Commitments but there are no relevant differences in from previous applied
and the connection between Swedish tax regulation and accaunting standard BFNAR 2012:1 - Annual report (K3).

accounting. The Parent Company thus follows the same

Note 2 Financial Income and Costs

EURthousand ) ) . , B 2019 2018
Interest income from Group companies ~ ~ - 1,085
Other financial income L ) L 1
Financialincome 10 1,066
Interest expense to Group campanies B ~ {5 o (1,1__32
Financial cost (5377 ] (1,1}3)7

VERISURE TOPHOLDING Z AB ANMNUAL RCPORT 200
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 Investments in Subsidiaries

EUR thousand

L e

Opening_a_cq_ui_s_i}i_o_n value

Capital increase o
Closing accumulated acquisition value

e, e 281 200E
i 2,415,910 2 245 357
169 170,553
2 416 079 2 415 910
Share of share capital
5_|_Jb§idiary pame Reg.no Reg.office  No.ofshares ~and veting (igpts o 2019 2018
Verlsure MldholdlngAB 556854-1402 Malmo B 500,000 ~100% 2,416,079 2,415,910
Totat ) o B 2,416,079 2,415,910
Share of
subsidiaryname e ___Reg.noc c o a e e

556854-1402

3368541410
556222-9012
| 5569552978
556153-2176
 556674-8975
__. 226893-9070
556702-0747
 556723-5329
5591329569

Verisure Midholding AB (publ)
Verisure Holding AB {publ)

Securatas Direct AB (publ)

Verisure Sates Sverige / AB

Verisure Sverige AB_
_ Alert Alarm AB
B Secu Iritas Direct Sverige AB

~ Verisure Logistics AB
Verisure Innovation AB

Vensure Intematlonal AB

_ESML SD Iberia Holdlng S.AU. _ AB8b537363
Secuntas Dlrect Espana S.AU A26106013
© Verisure Perl S.AC 12880228
Verisureftaly SRL. 1245646711000
- Verisure Brazil Monltoramento de Alarmes LTDA 11660106000138
Securitas Direct Portugal Unip. LDA 505760320
Verisure Chile SPA 7}@058647 -1
___Verisure Argentina Monitareo de Alarmas 5.A 24704
Securitas Birect 5.A.5 34500602700188
. Mediaveil 5.A.5 _ 418920120
* Verisure Sarl CHE300209613
OPSEC International BY - KVK74814990
Secunr.as DirectBy . o KVK17158925
verisure Installatmn and Momtormg BV KVK71133607
Securitas Direct NV KBOO459866904
Securitas Direct Management BVBA KBO0O877035396
Verisure Holding AS 997434366
V;.'_r.isur-é. .f:‘\S - 929120825
Falck Alarm by verisure AS _918me38
Verisure A/S 25019202
) Fatck Alarm pﬁgi\{gnsure AIS 138049380
Vensure Oy o o 1773522-2
_Verisure Services (UK) lelted 08840095
Verisure freaa bAC 7 658538
Verisure Deutschland GmbH HRB85120

Reg. office

share capital and
voting rights

Malmg, Sweden 100.00%
Malmé, Sweden 100.00%
Malmad, Sweden 100.00%
Linképing, Swec_i_er] 100.00%
Linképing, Sweden 100.00%
Soina, Sweden 100.00%
Linképing, Sweden 100.00%
Linképing, Sweden 100.00%
Malmd, Sweden 100.00%
Malmé, Sweden 100.00%
Madrid, Spain 100.00%
7Madr|c! Spain B 100.00%
Santrago de Surco Peru 100.00%
Rome, ltaly 100.00%
530 Paulo, Brazil 160.00%
_Lisbon, Portugal 100.00%
Santiago, Chile 100.00%
Buenos Aires, Argentina 100.00%
Chatenay-Malabry, France 100.00%
Chatenay—Mjlqbry, France  95.05%
Versoix, Switzerland 100.00%
Amsterdam, The Netherlarids 100.00%
Amsterdam, The Netherlands 100.00%
Amsterdam, The Netherlands 100.00%
Brussels, Belgium 100.00%
Brussels, Bglgirﬁmr 100.00%
Oslo, Norway 100.00%
Oslo Norway ) 100.00%
Oslo, Norway 100.00%
Glostrup, Denmark 100.00%
Glostrup, Denmark 100.00%
Helsinki, Finland 100.00%
Brentford, United Kingdom 100.00%
Dublin, lreland 100.00%
Diisseldarf, Germany 100.00%

A UK subsidiary in the Group has elected to make use of the audit exemption, for non-dormant subsidianes, under section 479A of the
UK Companes Act. In order to fulfil the conditions set cutin the regulations, the Company has given a statutory guarantee of all
outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary is subject at the end of the financial year December 31, 2019 and 2018, The company
which has made use of the audit exermnption is Verisure Services {UK) Limited (Company number: 08840095, registered office: Unit 1,

Brentside Executive Park. TW8 9DR Breniford).

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANMUAL REPIRT 20
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4 Transaction with Related Parties

Related parties are members of compantes that Varisure parties are also entities that are directly or indirectly owned by
Topholding 2 AB owns directly or tndirectly. They also include such individuals, or entities over which such persons can
members of the parent company’s Baard of Directors, Executive  exercise significant influence, All transactions with related
management and close members of their families. Related parties are at market rates.

Transactions with related parties

B R U A e e o et o+ o e st e i T UL AL
Interest income o - o o . T.___. o5
Interest expense- N i o L B I ) (1133)
Rogemption of shares — - o T i
Diidend , o - msm
e o

Balances with related parties

EURENOUSANG e enie wone e e e e o U . S L 4L 2
Liabilitieﬁ Lo group companies, non-current B B o 231748 231578
Note 5 Pledged Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Pledged assets

B R HNOUSANG . o oo smser e o e 4 1 et TR 3 4 55 i e o AR e ot e LB
Shares in subsidiaries 246,079 2415910

There are no contingent liabilities in 2019,

Note 6 Events After the Balance Sheet Date

No relevant events have occurred after the balance sheet date regarding the Parent Company, other than the events reported for
the Group In note 32.

Note 7 Proposed Appropriation of Profits and Losses

Non-restrictad profits and {osses at the disposal of the Annual General Meeting:

EUR 2019 2018
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2,184,340942  1,832,772,682
.. (5081 351399200

| 2,184,335,861 2,184,171,882

Retained earnings

Result tor the year
Total

The Board of Directors proposes that the profits and losses are appropriated so that

- . _ 2184335861 2,184171,882
Total 2,184,235,861 2,184,171,882
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Report

Unofficial translation
To the general meeting of the shareholders of Verisure
Tapholding 2 AB, corparate identity number 559086-0333

Regport an the annual accounts and consolidated accounts
Opinions

We have audited the annual accounts and consclidated
accounts of Verisure Tophofding 2 AB for the year 2019,

In our opinion, the annual accounts have been prepared in
accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of parent company
and the group as of 31 December 2019 and its financial
performance and cash flow for the year then ended in
accordance with the Annual Accounts Act. The consolidated
accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Act and present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the group as of 31 December 2019 and their
financial performance and cash flow for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards
(IFRS), as adopted by the EU, and the Annual Accounts Act. The
statutory administration report is consistent with the other
parts of the annual accounts and consolidated accounts.

Wa therefare recommend that the general meeting of
sharehelders adopts the income slalement and balance sheet
for the parent campany and the group.

Basis for Opinigns
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing {ISA) and generally accepted auditing
standards in Sweden. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibitities sectipn. We are independent of the parent
company and the group in accordance with professional ethics
for accountants in Sweden and have otherwise fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have chbtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions,

Other Information than the annual occounts

and consolidated accounts

This document also contains other information than the annual
accounts and consolidated acceunts and is found on pages
{2-52). The Board of Directars and the Managing Director are
responsible for this other information.

Qur apinian an the annual accounts and consolidated
accaunts does not cover this other information and we do not
express any farm of assurance conctusion regarding this other
information.
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In connection with our audit of the annual accounts and
cons¢lidated accounts, our responsibility is to read the
informaticn identified above and consider whether the
information is materially inconsistent with the annual accounts
and consolidated accounts. In this procedure we also take into
account our knowledge otherwise obtained in the audit and
assess whether the information otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If wa, based on the work performed concerning this
information, conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact, We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Boord of Director's
and the Managing Director
The Board of Directors and the Managing Direcior are
responsible for the preparation of the annual accounts and
consolidated accounts and that they give a fair presentation in
accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and, concerning the
consolidated accounts, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU. The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are
also responsible for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts and
consolidated accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the annual accounts and consatidated accounts,
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are
respansible for the assessment of the company's and the
group's ability to continue as a going concern. They disclose, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting, The going concern basis of
accounting is however not applied if the Board of Directors and
the Managing Birector intend teo liquidate the company, to
cease gperations, or has no reabistic alternative but to go so.

Auditor’s responsibitity

Our objectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about
whether the annual accounts and consolidated accounts as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
cur opinions. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of
assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 15As and generally acceptad auditing
standards in Sweden will always detect a material
missiatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisicns of users taken on the basis of these
annual accounts and consolidated accounts.
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A further description of our responsibility for the awdit of the
annual accounts and consolidated accounts is available on
Revisorsinspektionen's website: www.revisorsinspektionen.se/
ravisornsansvar. This description is part of the auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions

In addition to our audit of the annual accounts and
consolidated accounts, we have also audited the
administration of the Board of Director's and the Managing
Director of Verisure Tophoiding 2 AB for the year 2019 and the
proposed appropriations of the company’s profit or loss.

We recommend to the general meeting of sharehoelders that
the profit be apprepriated in accordance with the proposal in
the statutory administration report and that the members of
the Board of Director’s and the Managing Director be
discharged from Liability for the financial year.

Basis for Opinions
We conducted the audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards in Sweden. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities section. We are independent of the parent
cempany and the group in accordance with professional ethics
far accountants in Sweden and have otherwise fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicns.

Responsibilities of the Beard of Director’s

and the Managing Director

The Board of Directors is responsible for the proposal for
appropriations of the company’s profit or loss. At the proposal
of a dividend, this includes an assessment of whether the
dividend is justifiable considering the requirements which the
company's and the group's type of aperations, size and risks
place on the size of the parent company’s and the group’
equity, consolidation requirements, liquidity and position in
general.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the company’s
organization and the administration of the company's affairs.
This includes among other things continuous assessment of
the company’s and the group's financial situation and ensuring
that the company’s organization is designed so that the
accounting, management of assets and the company’s financiat

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AB ANMUAL REPCRT 2013

affairs otherwise are controlted in a reassuring manner. The
Managing Director shall manage the ongoing administration
according to the Board of Directors’ guidelines and instructions
and among other matters take measures that are necessary to
fulfilt the company's accounting in accordance with law ang
handle the management of assets in a reassuring manner.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our objective concerning the audit of the administration, and
thereby our opinion about discharge from liability, is to obtain
audit evidence to assess with a reasonable degree of
assurance whether any member of the Board of Directars or
the Managing Directar in any material respect:

» has undertaken any action or been guilty of any omission
which can give rise to liability to the company, ar

- in any other way has acted in contravention of the
Companies Act, the Annual Accounts Act or the Articles of
Association.

Our ghjective concerning the audit of the propesed
appropriations of the company's profit or loss, and thereby our
opinion about this, is to assess with reasonable degree of
assurance whether the proposal is in accerdance with the
Companies Act.

Reasonabte assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accerdance with
generally accepted auditing standards in Sweden will always
detect aclions or omissions that can give rise to liability to the
company, or that the proposed appropriations of the
company's profit or loss are not in accordance with the
Companies Act.

A further description of our responsibility for the audit of the
administration is available on Revisorsinspektionen's website:
www.revisorsinspektionen.sefrevisornsansvar. This description
is part of the auditor’s report.

Stockholm March 38, 2020

PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

jochan Rippe
Authorised Public Accountant
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Definitions

Key aperating metrics

Management uses a number of key operating metrics, in
addition to our IFRS financial measures, to evaluate, monitor
and manage our business. The non-IFRS operational and
statistical information related to our operations included in
this section is unaudited and has been derived from internal
reporting systems. Although none of these metrics are
measures of financia! performance under IFRS, we believe that
these metrics provide important insight into the operations
and strength of our business. These metrics may not be
comparable tc similar terms used by competitors or other
companies, and from time to time we may change our
definitions of these metrics. The metrics include the following:

Adjusted EBITDA
Earnings hefore interests, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, write-offs and separatety disclosed items.

Attrition rate

The attrition rate is the number of terminated subscriptions to
our monitoring service in the last 12 months, divided by the
average number of subscribers for the last 12 months.

Average revenue per user

Average monthly revenue per yser {"ARPU") is our portfoiio
services segment revenue, consisting of monthly average
subscription fees and sales of additional products and services
divided by the manthly average number of subscribers during
the retevant period.

Cancellations
Total number of cancelled subscriptions during the period
including cancellations on acquired portfolios.

Cash acquisition cost per new subscriber

Cash acquisition cost per new subscriber (“CPA") is the net
investment required to acquire a subscriber, including costs
related to the marketing and sales process, installation of the
alarm system, costs of alarm system praducts and overhead
expenses for the customer acquisition process. The metric (s
calculated net of any revenues from installation fees charged
to the subscriber and represents the sum of adjusted EBITDA
plus capital expenditure in ¢ur customer acquisition segment
on average for every subscriber acquired.
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Manthly adjusted EBITDA per subscriber

Monthly adjusted EBITDA per subscriber ("EPC") is calculated by
dividing the total menthly adjusted EBITDA from managing our
existing subscriper portfolio (which is our adjusted EBITDA
from portfolio services) by the monthly average number

of subscribers.

Net Debt

The sum of financial indebtedness, defined as interest bearing
debt from external counterparties, excluging accrued interest
less the sum of available cash and financial recewvables.

New subscriber added (gross)
Total number of new subscribers added.

Organic revenue growth
Revenue growth not zffected by acquisitions or the impact of
foreign exchange.

Paybach period

Payback peried represents the time in years required to
recapture the initial capital investment made to acquire
a new subscriber and is calculated as CPA divided by EPC,
divided by 12.

Retirement of assets
The residual value of an asset that will no longer be used in the
operations are recognised as a cast in the income statement.

Separately disclosed items (5D1)

5DI's are costs or income that have been recognised in the
income statement which management believes, due to their
nature or size, should be disclosed separately to give 2 more
comparable view of the year-on-year financial performance.

Subscriber growth rate

Number of subscribers at the end of period divided by the
number of subscribers 12 months ago.
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Risk Factors

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We operate in a highly competitive industry and our results
may be adversely affected by this competition.

We face significant campetition from both established and new
cempetitors. in some instances, we compete against companies
with greater scale, easier access to financing, greater personnel
resources, greater brand name recognition and experience or
longer-established relationships with customers.

The residential heme and small business segment of the much
larger security services market (the "RHSB segment”) in Europe
and Latin America is fragmented and subject to significant
competition and pricing pressures. As a result, within our
segment, we must compete against a variety of players who
use varipus strategies. For example, the majority of cur
competitors offer lower instailation and lower recurring fees,
generally reflecting the product quality and service levels.
Likewise, existing competitors may expand their current product
and service offerings more rapidly, adapt to new or emerging
technologies more quickly, take advantage of acquisitions or
devote greater rescurces to the marketing and sale of their
products and services, than we do. Qur competitors may use
lower pricing to increase their customer base and win market
share. Our higher installation fees as compared to cur
competitors could make our competitors' offers appear more
attractive to potential customers, which could have a significant
effect on our ability to maintain or grow our customer base.
Likewise, if our competitors charge lower ongoing monitoring
fees than we do, we may have to reduce our monitering fees or
risk losing our existing customers. These competitive actions
could impact our ability to attract new customers, subject us to
pricing pressure or erode our existing customer portfolio, each
of which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financiat condition and results of cperations.

We also face potential caompetition from improvements in
de-it-yoursetf (“DIY") self-monitored systems, which, through
the internet, text messages, emails os similar communications,
enable consumers to monitor and control their home
environment through devices that they install and monitor
without third-party involvement. Cont:nued pricing pressure or
improvements in techneclogy, as well as increased smart phone
penetration, and shifts in consumer preferences towards DIY
and self-monitoring could adversely impact our customer base
or pricing structure and have a material adverse effect an our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

With respect to competition from potential new entrants, we
believe that players operating in the coennected home market
and telecommunications market are best situated to move into
the security and safety industry. While within the connected
homea market, security and safety is the largest growing segment,
the connected home market itself is growing quickly and covers
many different products and services in segments such as utility

VERISURE TOPHOLDING 2 AS ANNUAL REPIRT 201y

management, entertainment, wellness management and smart
appliances. If competitors in these alternative segments move
into the security and safety segment of the connected home
market, such action could have a material adverse effect on
our business, inancial condition and results of operatians.
Additionally, large players in adjacent or overlapping industries,
such as Amazon, Google, Apple and Microsoft, have launched
smart home platforms. Such players could leverage their well-
known brand names and technological superiority to enter or
further expand the security and safety segment of the cannected
home market. For example, Googie acquired Dropcam (a
manufacturer of security cameras) in June 2014, and merged it
with Nest (a manufacturer of smart thermostats) and has
suhsequently launched a DIY home alarm platform on that basis.
As another example, Amazon acquired Blink in December 2017
and Ring in February 2018, and subsequently proceeded to
launch a Ring Alarm product suite. Such actions could impact
our ahility to attract rew customers, subject us to pricing
pressure or erode our existing customer portfolio, each of
which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Telecommunications
players have already shown significant interest in entering the
security and safety market in Europe and Comcast has already
done so successfully in the United States and Telefonica is in the
process of deing so in Spain. Given the extensive custamer base
of larger telecommunications players, if they are able to
successfully develop security monitoring capabilities, they may
be able to leverage their existing customer contacts to rapidly
grow this segment of their business.

The success of our business depends, in part, on our ability to
respond to the rapid changes in our industry and provide
customers with technolagicol features that meet their
expectations.
Qur success and competitive position depend, in large part, on
our ability to develop and supply innovative products and keep
pace with techrological developments in the security and
safety services industry. Whether developed by us or otherwise,
our offering of new product features can have a significant
impact an a customer's initiat decision to choose our products.
Likewise, the quality of cur monitoring services, which heavily
depend on the technology used in our security and safety
systems, also plays a large role in our ability to attract new
customers and retain existing customers. Accordingly, the
success of our business depends, in part, on our ability to
continue to enhance our existing products and services and
anticipate changing customer requirements and industry
standards.

We may not be able to develop or partner with third-party
suppliers to gain access to technical advances before our
competitors, match technological innovations made by our

56



RISK FACTORS

competitors or design systems that meet customers’
requirements. Alternatively, we may not have the financial
resources required to successfully develop ar implement such
new technologies. If we are unable, for technological, legal,
financial or other reasons, 1o adapt to changing market
conditions or customer requirements in a timely manner, we
could lose existing custamers, encounter {rouble recruiting
new customers, or become subject to increased pricing
pressures. Should we experience any of these technology
related challenges, our business, financial condition and
results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

We are susceptibile to economic downturns, particularly those
impacting the housing market or consumer spending.
Our financial performance depends primarily on residential
consumers in single-famity dwellings and, to 2 lesser extent, on
small businasses. Periods of econamic downturn, particularly
those impacting the housing market or consumer discretionary
spending, can increase our attrition rate among existing
customers. For example, customer attrition rates increased
across our business in 2009 compared te 2008, which coincided
with the global economic crisis. In the residential segment, a
proportion of customers discontinued our service in order to
reduce their recurring costs, while others moved from their
homes and did not re-subscribe to our service, in the small
business segment, customers were particularty impacted by
the economic downturn and sought to reduce their costs or
were forced 1o close thair businesses, and thus we had a more
significant increase in atgrition rate in our small husiness
portfolio compared to our residential customers. Attrition as a
nercentage of averall custamers increased in both 2012 and
2013, which was primarily driven by enduring effects of the
recession in the Spanish economy, where we have a larger
proportion of small business custamers compared to the rest
of our segments. Small business subscriptions are more
directly correlated tec economic conditions. A renewed or future
recession or period of economic uncertainty could [ead to
increases in our attrition rate and could reduce the inflow of
new customers purchasing our services. Periods of econamic
downturn, particularly those that affect Europe, can also
negatively impact our ability to sell new alarm systems. The
outlook for the world economy remains subject to uncertainty.
Spain, as mentioned above, was severely affected by the
crisis of previous years but, at the moment, is recovering from
the period of recession and austerity. However, the economy
still suffers from relatively high tevels of unemployment and
debt. Furthermore, tensions in Catalonia relating to the
sovereignty of the regian are not abating and as a resuit the
Spanish Government decreased its economic outlook for 2019,
and the National Securities Market Commission {Comision
Nacional del Mercade de Valores) has mentioned the uncertainty
derived from the potitical turmoil in Catalorwa as a domestic nisk,
Additionally, on March 29, 2017, the Prime Minister of the
United Kingdom officially triggered Article 50 of the Treaty of
Lisbon, signaling the start of a two-year period in which the
United Kingdom will negotiate the terms of its exit ("'Brexit’)
from the European Union. This withdrawal took effect on the
effective date of the withdrawal agreement on January 31, 2020
The effects of Brexit are uncertain, including in relation to the
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negotiation of a future agreement between the United Kingdom
and the European Union to come into force at the end of the
transition period under the withdrawal agreement, an extension
of the transition period, a second referendum ar any other
unexpected development. While it is difficult to predict the
effect of Brexit an the European and global economy,
uncertainty regarding new or modified arrangements between
the United Kingdom and the European Union could result in
additionat volatility in the markets, increased costsand a
materiat adverse effect on the buying behavior of commercial
and individual customers. The resulting political and economic
uncertainty could also lead to further calls for other
governments of other European Union Member States to
consider withdrawal fram the European Union or the
abandenment of the euro as a currency. Additionally, if the
United Kingdam and the European Union are unable to negotiate
acceptable terms to apply following the end of the transition
peried or if 6ther Eurapean Unien member states pursue
withdrawal, barrier free access between the United Kingdom
and other European Union member states or among the
European Economic Area ogverall could be diminished or
eliminated. Such developments, or the perception that any
such developments could occur, could have a material adverse
effect on global economic conditions and the stability of the
global economy.

Any deterigration of the current economic situation in the
market segments in which we operate, or in the global economy
as a whole could have a negative impact on the Group's revenues
and increase the Group’s financing costs, circumstances that
could have a maieriat adverse effect on the business, financial
condition and results of aperations of the Group.

Attrition of customer accounts or failure to continue ta acquire
new customers in a cost-effective manner could adversely
affect our operations.

We contract with customers on standard terms within each
country. In some countries, our customer contracts have
minimum periods of duration—typicatly ranging frem 12 to 36
months—during which cancellation fees or payments may he
payable if the contract is terminated by the customer. Following
the expiration of any initial minimum period, a customer may
cancel a subscription on giving the requisite period of notice
(typicatly one to three months} without payment of a
cancellation fee. For residential customers, the main reasons
for cancelling a subscription include factors such as moving to
a new home, financial distress, or dissatisfaction with our service
or prices. For small businesses, attritian is usualtly related to
financial distress, the failure, closure or relocation of the
business or dissatisfaction with our service or prices. Qur
overail attrition rates on a twelve-month trailing basis were
6,7% and 6.3% in the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2017,
and 6.2% in both 2018 and 2019 respectively. As we continue to
expand, including into new countries, our new customers may
have different econamic and other characteristics from our
current customers, which may lead to increased attrition rates.
For example, in cur Latin America geographies, the attrition
rates were higher than we typically experience in our European
geographies.
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Customer attrition reduces our revenues from monthly
subscription fees and, to the extent we decide to invest in
replacing such customers with new customers, customer
attrition also increases our customer acquisition costs.
Consequently, customer attrition, particularly prior to the end
of the payback period (the time it takes to recapture our upfront
costs) have a negative effect on our business. If upfront
customer acquisition costs increase, or if the installation fees
or manthly subscription fees we charge decrease, the payback
period will lengthen, only serving to increase the negative
effects that attrition may have on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Qur ability to retain existing customers and acquire new
customers in a cost-effective manner may also be affected by
our customers’ selection of telecommunications services.
Certain elements of our cperating model rely on our customers’
selection of telecommunications services (both wireless and
wired), which we use to communicate with our meoniteoring
operations. In order to continue to service aur customers, cur
systems need to be able to interface with the technology
existing in our customers’ residences or businesses. Advances
in technology may require customers to upgrade to alternative,
and often more expensive, technologies to transmit alarm
signals. Such higher costs may reduce the market for new
customers, or cause existing customers te cancel their services
with us. While we generally seek to upgrade customers on a
rolling basis, if a substantial number of customers were to
simultaneousty seek Lo upgrade their services, we may not be
ahle to effciently or effectively accommodate such requesis.
Additionally, in the future we may not be able to successfully
imptement new technologies or adapt existing technglogies to
changing market demands, and in any event, we may be required
to incur significant additional costs to upgrade to improved
technology. Continued shifts in technology or customers'
preferences regarding telecommunications services could have
a material adverse effect an cur business, financial condition
and resuits of operations. Qur ability to offer cur services to
our customers depends on the performance of these
telecommunications services. In particular, we rely on them to
provide our customers with constant connectivity to our
monitoring cperations so that we can be made aware of all
actual intrusions. Such telecommunications services are, however,
vulnerable to damage from a variety of sources, including
power loss, malicious human acts and natural disasters.
Moreover, these telecommunications services providers have
the right to terminate their services under their agreements in
certain circumstances and under certain conditions, some of
which are outside our custemers’ control. The terminaticn of
such services could impact our ability to provide our customers
with the services they require, which would adversely affect the
value of our business.

Cur substantial concentration of sales in Iberia (Spain and
Portugal) makes us more vulnerable to negative developments
in the region.

A significant portion of our operations occur in Iberia {Spain
and Portugal). The Iherian segment accounted for 41% of our
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2019. In light of this
concentration, our business is particularly sensitive to
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developments that materially impact the Iberian economy or
otherwise affect our operations in Iberia. Negative developments
in, or the general weakness of, the iberian economy may have a
direct negative impact on the speading patterns of potential
new customers, our current customers and the willingness of
small businesses to make investmenis. We have a higher
percentage of small business customers in lberia than in our
other gecgraphies and such small business customers tend to
be more sensitive to economic conditians. A recession, or
public perception that econemic conditions are deteriorating,
could substantially decrease the demand for our products and
adversely affect our business. The tensions in Catalonia
relating to the sovereignty of the region, or political instability
in other regions in theria could lead to an economic slowdown
in those regions. While the impact of an economic slowdown or
recession on aur business in keria is uncertain, it could result
in a decline in our revenues which couid have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of
cperations.

Certain of aur potential competitors may seek to expand their
market share by bundling their existing offerings with
additional products and services.

We may not be able to compete effectively with companies that
integrate or bundle security offerings similar to ours with the
other general services they provide. For example, home insurance
companies (many of which offer reduced premiums for homes
with security alarms), telecommunications companies or utility
companies (all of which may already have a relationship with
our potential customers) may decide to expand inta security
and safety services and bundle their existing offerings with
such services. The existing access to and relationship with
customers that these companies have could give them a
substantial advantage over us, especially if they are able to
offer customers a [ower price by bundling these services, These
potential competitors may subject us to increased pricing pressure,
slower growth in our customer base, higher costs and increased
attrition rate among our customers. if we are unabte ta
sufficiently respond to these competitors or otherwise meet
these competitive challenges, we may lose customers or
axperience a decrease in demand for our products and services,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial candition and results of operations.

In addition, in many locations, we work with guarding
companies to respond to triggered alarms. In some cases, they
are also competing to us for monitoring security and safety
services. If these or other guarding companies were to successfully
expand or further expand into the alarm menitering and
instaltation market segment, they would become direct and
larger competitors with us. This development could also force
us to find atternative first respenders in the affected regions,
and such alternative first responders may not be available on a
timely basis or on commercially attractive terms. The costs and
difficulties associated with iinding alternative providers, as
well as any decrease in our share of supply in the relevant
regian, resulting from the presence of these companies, could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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Privacy concerns, such as consumer identity theft and security
breaches, could hurt cur reputation and revenues, and our
failure to comply with regulatians regarding the use of
personal customer data could subject us to lawsuits or result
in the loss of goodwill of our customers and adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

As part of our operations, we collect a large amount of private
information from our customers, including name, address, bank
details, credit card information, images, voice recordings and
other personal data. If we were to experience a breach of our
data security, we might find curselves in a position where
personal data about aur customers was at risk of expaosure. To
the extent that any such exposure leads to credit card fraud or
identity theft, or the misuse or distribution of other perscnal
data, including images taken by our photo detectors and cameras,
we may experience a general decline in consumer confidence in
our business, which may lead 1o an increase in our attrition rate
or make it more difficult to attract new customers. in additian,
if technology upgrades or other expenditures are required to
prevent security breaches of our network, boost general consumer
confidence in our business, or prevent cradit card fraud and
identity theft, we may be required to make unptanned capital
expenditures or expend cther resources. Further, as we expand
the automation of our services and offer increasingty centralised
access for consumers through features like "Connected Home,”
the potential risk associated with any form of cyberattack or
data breach also increases, threatening to expose consumer
data. Any such breach and associated loss of confidence in our
business or additional capital expenditure requirement could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of eperations.

Moreover, in most of the countries in which we operate, the
processing of personal data is subject to governmental
regulation and legislation. Any failure to comply with such
regulations or legislation could lead to governmental sanctions,
including fines or the initiation of criminal or civil proceedings.
Additionally, in most of the countries in which we operate, our
customers and employees have the right to access, rectify.
cancel 5r oppose the processing of thelr personal data.

Notwithstanding cur efforts to protect personal data, we are
exposed to the risk that data could be wrongfully appropriated,
lost or disclosed, or processed in breach of data protection
regulation, by us or on our behalf. Additionally, if we fail to
comply with any regulations or legisiation applicable to our
coltection and processing of personal data, we may be exposed
to judicial proceedings or fines, any of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, reputation, financial
candition and results of aperations,

Patential disputes over or other events relating to the brand
name SECURITAS may negatively impact our results of
operations.

The Group trades under two brands, SECURITAS DIRECT and
VERISURE. We do nct own the "SECURITAS” brand name or
trademark. Instead, we license the "SECURITAS” brand name and
trademark from Securitas AB (publ) for the relevant operating
geographic locations. Securitas AB (publ) is our former parent
company from whom we demerged in 2006. Although, historically,
Securitas AB (publ) has primarily focused on the large enterprise
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segment of the hroader security services market, they do compete
with us for monitoring services for the residential and smalt
business segment in which we aperate in some markets
discussed below. In the future, Securitas AB {publ) may choose
to change their focus and increase their presence in the
residential and small business segment including use of the
“SECURITAS brand name in the geographies in which we operate.
In that case, consumers may become confused between the
two different companies. Additionally, once our current license
for the use of the “SECURITAS" brand name and trademark expires,
we may not be able to continue to license the “SECURITAS” brand
on commercially reasonable terms, if at all, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of aperations.

We have incurred and may continue to incur significant
expenses in connection with developing our brands.

We make significant expenditures to market our hrands and
increase brand awareness among consumers. In addition, from
time to time we seek to develop new brands, and often make
significant investments to develep these brands. Since 2009, we
have developed our “VERISURE" brand for atarms alongside
Securitas Direct. As we continue to build the "VERISURE” brand
name, and Toll it out in an increasing number of our countries,
there is some risk that the velume of new installations and our
attrition rate could be adversely impacted, as it may take time
for potential customers and existing customers to associate
this new brand name with our histerical reputation as a quality
service provider under the Securitas Direct brand and company
name. We may not be successful in achieving an acceptable
levet of recognition for our brands and company and, if so, this
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of aperatians.

We regard our brand names as critical to our success. Failure
to protect our brand names or to prevent unauthorised use by
third parties, or termination of the agreements granting our
license, could harm our reputation, affect the ability of customers
to associate our quality service with our company and cause us
substantial difficulty in soliciting new customers, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We may face difficulties in increasing our customer base or our
subscrigtion fees or up-selling new products to our current
customers, and these difficulties may cause our operating
results to suffer.

We have experienced strong revenue growth over the past
several years, However, our future rate of growth may slow
compared to the past period. Qur recent revenue growth is
primarily due te the growth of ocur customer base and
increases in cur subscription fees (including some increases
beyond the increase in consumer price indices, generally
reflecting increased service levels). We may not be able to
sustain the level of customer growth, and further increases in
subscription fees may meet customer resistance and lead to
increases in customer attrition rates. If we are unable to execute
our business strategy, the RHSB segment does not continue to
grow as we expect, or we encounter other unforeseen difficulties
in acquiring new customers or selling additional products and
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services to existing customers, we may experience a material
adverse effect on cur business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Additionally, we may be forced to spend additional capital to
cortinue to acquire customers at our present rate or, during
certain periods in the future, we may seek to increase the rate
at which we acquire additional customers. Either such strategy
would cause us to expend additionat amounts to purchase
inventory and to market our products. As a result of these
increased investments, aur profitability would decrease. In
addition, we may evaluate complementary business
opportunities, adding customer acquisition channels and
forming new altiances with partners to market our alarm systems.
Any of these new oppoertunities, customer acquisition channels
or alliznces, such as the acquisition of Arlo Europe in 2019,
could have higher cost structures than our current arrangements,
which could reduce profit margins. Moreover, our customer
base includes long-time legacy customers, and it s a challenge
to sell additional services to such customers. Should we
increase our efforts to up-sell new products and incur the
additionat costs, our business, Ainancial condition and results
of operations could be materially adversely affected.

We are subject to increasing operating casts and inflation risk
which may adversely affect our earnings, and we may not be
able ta successfully implement our comprehensive cost savings
program, FOG.

We are subject to increasing operating costs. We are also
impacted by increases in salaries, wages, benefits and other
administrative costs. While we aim to increase our subscription
rates to offset increases in operating costs, we may not be
successful in doing so. Price increases are also associated with
expenses, in particular, service costs, As a result, our operating
costs may increase faster than our associated revenues,
resulting in a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

In late 2014, we began implementing a group-wide operational
improvement plan, FOG, with the aim of optimising cur cost
structure and improving productivity, which is still ongoing and
now become part of our Company DNA. The program seeks to
leverage our scale and share best practices across our global
footprint in order to reduce costs and improve our margins. We
have, since the program’s implementation, monitored the obtained
savings through implementation of a diligent bottom-up process
with quarterly reporting to ceuntry and Group Management
teams. The actual savings in 2019 are EUR €34 million, obtained
through development and sharing of best practices in our alarm
monmnitering, customer care and maintenance departments as
well as cur Group wide procurement departments ability to
leverage our size and negotiation power to obtain reduced
prices across our main cost buckets.

We expect that our incremental cost savings for the period
from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 will be approximately
EUR 18 millior, which represents amounts in excess of what is
already reflected in our Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2019. There can be no guarantee that such
benefits will be realised or that additional costs witl not be
incurred. The continued success of the program is contingent
of many factors, including the implementation of initiatives in
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daily operations, follow-ups by maragement, effective leverage
of successful strategies across jurisdictions, assumptiens
regarding local and macroeconomic conditions, engagement
with third parties (including contract counterparties), timely
launch of various request for propesals, foreign exchange
rates, successfut training with respect to customer care
efficiency initiatives and effective rollout of automation of
various systems, some of which may not materialise in
accordance with our expectations.

If the planned measures to increase efficiency and achieve
cost savings fail in whole ar in part or are not sustainable, we
may not operate profitably or may experience less profitably
than we expect to. All of the risks described above could
materially adversely affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

An increase in labor costs in the jurisdictions in which we
operate, especially in Spain, may adversely affect our business
and profitability.

Our business is {abor intensive, with labor costs representing
44% of our total operating costs for the year ended December
31,2019 Any increase in labor costs, particularly in Spain where
our largest number of employees are located, coutd adversely
affect our business and profitability. Many of our employees
work under collective bargaining agreements. These existing
collective bargaining agreements may not be able to be
extended or renewed on their current terms, and we may be
unable to negotiate collective bargaining agreements in a
favarable and timely manner. We may also beceme subject to
additional collective bargaining agreements in the future or
our non-unionized workers may unionize, any of which could
have a material adverse effect on our costs, operations and
business. In the event that we experience a significant or
material increase in labor costs and are not able to pass some
or all of those costs on te our customers, it could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Any significant or prolonged disruption of our menitoring
centers could constrain our ability to effectively respond to
alarms and serve our customers.

A disruption to one or more of our monitoring centers could
constrain our ability to provide alarm monitoring services and
serve our customers, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business. Our alarm systems are linked to our
monitoring centers by a variety of connection platforms (both
wired and wireless). It is critical that the communication
platforms supporting our monitering activities function properly
and allow us to provide our full range of security solutions. We
are exposed to various risks ranging from outages and
interruptions in the connections between our alarms and cur
monitoring centers as well as larger-scale power failures or
other catastrophes with respect to our manitoring centers. In
addition, because our customer service operators are often in
the same location as our monitoring staff, damage or a
protracted outage in telecommunication traffic in a specific
area or a wide range of areas that affect more than one of cur
moniteoring stations could significantly disrupt our sales and
monitoring operations. For example, if any of our monitoring
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centers were 1o be affected by earthquake, flood, fire or other
natural disaster, act of terrorism, cyber-attack, power loss or
other catastrophe, our operations and customer relations
could be, in turn, materially and adversely affected. We attempt
to mitigate this risk by maintaining auxiliary facilities that can
support full monitoring capabilities. Nevertheless, such facilities
may not remain operational or we may not be able to fransfer
our monitoring function in a timely manner. In addition, an
auxiliary facility typically does not have all the same capabilities
and functionalities as the main center, such as invoicing. Any
significant disruption to our operations could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Any disruption to the communities in which we operate, orin
which our suppliers operate, as a result of the impacts of
Covid-19 could impact cur obility to increase our customer
base at the same rate, maintein the same low levels of
attrition, deliver uninterrupted high quality services to our
customers or source the products needed for our operations
and may therefore adversely nffect our business.

Where our sales activities are disrupted by restrictions
imposed by governments to address the risk of transmission of
Covid-19, or by changes in consumer behaviour, cur future rate
of growth may slow temporarily compared to the past period.
The potential financial impact of any slower growth would be
mitigated primarily by reducing cost spend until the situation
normalises.

The general economic impacts of Covid-19 restrictions on the
communities that we serve may result in customers not being
able to continue to pay for the service we provide or deciding
to cancel the service. This could resultin an increase in bad
debts and canceliations, which would impacl vur profitability
and attrition rate negatively. This would be mitigated primarily
by further cost efficiency measures and by strengthening
customer acquisition investment after the situation normalises.

The disruptions and restrictions triggered by Covid-19 could
constrain our ability to provide alarm manitoring and other
customer services. We are mitigating this risk by enabling
continued monitoring and customer services by for example use
of segregated teams, use of back-up sites and remote working.

The disruptions triggered by Covid-19 in countries where our
supptiers are located may result in a slow-down of their
production activities. In addition, the flow of goods between
countries may be impacted by the restrictions imposed an
cross barder trade. We have mitigated this risk by building
stocks and are closely monitoring the production capacities of
our suppliers. In the event of any potential impact to the supply
of specific components, we have put in place where possible
mutti-supplier scurcing arrangements,

As the situation is rapidly evolving at the time of publication
of this Annual Report, the above list of risks is not intended to
be exhaustive or precise.

Our reputation as a supplier and service provider af high-
quality security offerings may be adversely affected by
product defects or shortfalls in cur customer service.

Qur business depends on our reputation and our ability to
maintain good relationships with our customers, suppliers,
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employees and local regulators. Our reputation may be harmed
either through product defects, such as the failure of one or more
of our alarm systems, or shortfalls in pur customer service,
such as a failure to provide reliable product maintenance. Any
harm gdone to our reputation or business relationships as a
result of our actions or the actions of third parties could have a
significant negative effect on us. Qur relationships with our
customers are of particular importance. Customers generally
judge our performance through their interactions with the staff
at our monitoring centers, the reliability of our products and
our maintenance performance for any pmducts that require
repair. Any failure to meet our customers’ expectations in such
customer service areas could have a material impact on our
attrition rate or make it difficult to recruit new customers.
Moreover, we may be exposed to product liability claims in the
event that any of our products is alleged to contain a defect
and we may incur liability costs for the entire damage or loss
claimed. Any claims could divert resources from gperating the
husiness and may adversely affect our reputation with our
customers as a provider of gquality solutions. Any harm to our
reputation caused by any of these or other factors could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial conditian
and resulis of operations.

We may face linbility or damage to our reputation or brand for
our failure to respond adequately to alerm activations.

The nature of the services we provide patentially exposes us to
risks of liability for operational failures. If we faif to respond
effectively to an alarm, our customers could be harmed, their
items could be stolen or their property could be damaged. Our
customer contracts and other agreements pursuant to which
we sell our products and services typically contain provisions
timiting our liability to custamers and third parties in the event
that certain failures lead tc a loss due to a system failure or an
inadeguate response to alarm activation. However, these
provisions as well as pur insurance policies may be inadequate
1o protect us from potential liabitity. In addition, if a ciaim is
brought against us, these limitations may not be enforced or
enforceable. Any significant or material claim related to the
failure of our preducts or services could lead to significant
litigation costs, including the payment of monetary damages,
reputational damage and adverse publicity, which could have
an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Our business operates in a regulated industry, and
noncompliance with requlations could expose us to fines,
penalties and other liabilities and negative conseguences.

Our operations and employees are subject to various iaws and
regulations. We are subject to EU and local laws, rules and
regulations in the geographic regions in which we operate.
These regulations govern aur gperations, from the sales and
installation process through to the manitoring and alarm
verification process. Relevant regulation for gur operations
include such matters as consumer protection, fair trade,
country-specific security industry regulation {including with
respect to hardware requirements or operational requirements),
data privacy, marketing and competition law. Many European
countries have regulations governing consumer sales methods
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such as door-to-door, telemarketing and online sales or
regulations governing trial periods during which customers
may request a refund if they change their mind about wanting
to purchase a given product or service. In order to install an
alarm system, we generally must be licensed in the country
where we are installing the system. Additionally, we generalily
must abtain operating certificates or permits for our alarm
monitoring centers, and provide specified tevels of training to
our employees at those centers. We are also governed by
regulations relating to when we can forward alarms to emergency
praviders, and may in certain countries be subject ta conseguences
if we forward false alarms to such emergency providers. Any
failure to comply with the laws, rules or regulations {local or
ctherwise) in jurisdictions in which we operate may result in
fines, penalties or a suspension or termination of our right to
sell, install and/or manitar alarm systems in the relevant
jurisdiction.

Additionally, changes in laws or regulations in the jurisdictions
in which we operate, or the introduction of new EU regulation
could cause us to incur significant costs and expenses te
comply with such laws or regulations, or become unable to
operate in the alarm sale, installation or monitoring market
segment within the lecalities in which such laws or regulations
are impiemented, or could impact our sales channels. Such changes
may also result in delays in commencement or completion of
services for our customers or the need to modify completed
installations. For example, the New Deal for Consumers
adopted by the European Parliament and the European Council
on Aprii 18, 2019 (the “EU Directive") may result in national
legisiation restricting door to door sales practices and may
require us to change our sales approach with potential customers.
The implementatian of the EU Directive is likely to vary across
our countries of operation. Any limitation on our ability to
operate our business due to legal or regulatory reasons could
have a material adverse effect on ous business, financial
condition and results of cperations.

increased adoption of false alarm ordinances by local
governments or other simitar regulatory developments could
adversely affect our business.

An increasing number of local governmental authorities have
adopted, or are considering the adoption of, laws, regulations
or policies aimed at reducing the perceived costs to them of
responding to false atarm signals. These measures could
include, among other things:

- requiring permits for the installation and monitering of
individual alarm systems and the revocation of such permits
following a specified number of false alarms;

- imposing limitations an the number of times the police will
respond to alarms at a particular location after a specified
number of false alarms;

- requiring further verification of an alarm signal before the
police will respend; and

- subjecting alarm monitoring companies to fines or penalties
for transmitting false alarms.

Enactment of such measures could adversely affect our costs
and our ability to conduct our activities. Far example, concern
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aver false alarms in localities adopting these ardinances could
cause a decrease in the timeliness of emergency responders.
As a result, consumers may be discouraged from purchasing or
maintaining 2 menitored alarm system. in addition, some local
governments impose fines, penalties and limitations on either
customers or the alarm companies for false alarms. Cur alarm
service contracts generally allow us to pass these charges on
to customers. However, if more local governments impose fines
or penalties, or if local governments increase existing
requirements, our custemers may find these additional charges
prohibitive and be discouraged from using monitared alarm
services. If the adoption of such ordinances reduces the demand
for our products or services or iIf we are unable to pass related
assessments, fines and penalties on tc our customers, we could
experience a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We rely on third-party suppliers for our alarm systems end any
failure or interruption in the provision of such products or
failure by us to meet minimum purchase requirements could
harm our ability to operate our business,

The alarm systems and other products that we install are
manufactured by third party suppliers. Our supplers’ abilities to
meet our needs are subject to various risks, including political
and economic stability, natural calamities, interruptions in
transportation systems, terrorism and labor issues. We are
therefore susceptible to the interrupticn of supply or the
receipt of faulty products from our supptiers. Difficuities
encountered with suppliers may result in disruptions to our
operations, loss of prefitability and damage to our reputation,
and in such instances our business, financial condition, resuits
of operations and prospects could be adversely affected. For
example, if suppliers for key compenents fail to deliver products
ar experience delays in delivery, such difficulties may prevent
us from upgrading equipment, delivering products to our
custamer on time, or otherwise hinder our ability to install and
upgrade systems and provide replacement parts. This could
result in higher costs to us and a potential decline in confidence
in our products and services among our customers, We are
particularly vulnerable to any disruptions in supply of our legacy
systems or replacement parts for these systems, as these
products may become obsolete and may be out of production.
Across the Group, we have a number of critical components in
our systems where we have a single supplier, which subjects us
to a higher risk of interrupied supply. We also must meet
minimum purchase commitments with certain suppliers, which
may require us to hold inventory in excess of aur requirements
of to buy volumes beyond actual demand where demand falls
below expectations. For example, in 2008, as the economy
stowed significantly, so did the demand for our products and
we were required to purchase and hold excess inventory to
meet our minimum purchase requirements.

We also often partner with key suppliers to develop
proprietary technologies and products used in our business.
We use these partnerships to supplement our own internal
product development team. If these suppliers fail to keep pace
with technological innovations in the RHSB segment, we may
incur increased product development costs or lose customers
1o competitors with access to these technological innovations.
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Any interruption in supply, failure to preduce guality products
ar inability to keep pace with technolbogical innevation by a key
supplier could adversely affect our operaticns, as it may be
difficult for us to find alternatives an terms acceptable to us,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and resuits of operations.

We may incur unexpectedly high costs as a result of meeting
aur warranty obligotions.

Many of our customer agreements provide for warranties with
longer coverage periods than the warranties offered to us from
suppliers of our component parts. Therefore, we may be liable
for defects in our suppliers’ component parts that manifest
after the term of the manufacturer’s warranty expires. Further,
our suppliers’ warranties aiso have limitations on the extent of
their liahility for repairs or replacements. Additionally, we may
encounter situations where we believe a product is defective,
but the manufacturer may not honor the warranty either because
they de not agree that the product is defective or because the
manufacturer has financial difficulties. Any significant incurrence
of warranty expense in excess of our estimates for which we
are unable to receive reimbursement from the supplier could
have a materiai adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Qur insurance policies may not fully protect us from significant
liabilities.

We carry insurance of various types, including claims, general
tiability and professional liability insurance, in amounts
management considers adequate and custemary for our industry.
Some of our insurance policies, and the laws of some of the
jurisdictions in which we operate, may limit or prohibit insurance
coverage for punitive or certain other types of damages, or
liability arising from gross negligence. As such, our insurance
policies may be inadequate to protect us against liability from
the hazards and risks related to our business. Additionally, we
may not be able to obtain adequate insurance coverage in the
future at rates we consider reasonable, The occurrence of an
event not fully covered by insurance, or an event that we did
not carry adequate insurance for, cauld result in substantial
losses and could have a material adverse effect on our
tusiness, financial condition and results of operations.

Unauthorised use of or disputes involving our proprietary
technology and processes may adversely affect our business.
Qur success and competitive position depend in parton a
combination of trade secrets and proprietary know-how. We
use our in-house development team to design proprietary
products, including hardware and software protocols. We aiso
cooperate with our network of manufacturing partners to
jointly develop new proprietary products and solutions. While
we are increasingly seeking patent protection covering such
proprietary technologies, the legal protections covering our
proprietary technotogies from infringement or other misuse
may be inadequate. Likewise, the remedy for any breach of
such protections may not be adequate to compensate us for
the damages suffered. Any access to or use by competitors of
our technology could have a material adverse effect on our
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business, financial condition and results of operations.

In additien, we may be subject to claims of patent or other
intellectual property rights infringement by third parties. In
develaping technotogies and systems, we may nat adequately
identify third-party intellectual property rights or assess the
scope and validity of these third-party rights. Accordingly, we
may become subject to lawsuits alleging that we have infringed
on the intellectual property rights of others and seeking that
we cease to use the relevant technology. Intellectual property
litigation could adversely affect the develepment or sale of the
challenged product or technology or require us to pay damages
or royaities to license proprietary rights from third parties.
Licenses may not be available to us on commercially reasonabla
terms, if at all. Any such intellectual property litigation couid
represent a significant expense and divert our personnel's
attention and efforts and could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may be unable to effectively manage our growth into new
geographies or realise the intended benefits frem our
acquisitions.

Qur growth plan includes expansion into new or recently entered
regions in Europe and tatin America. Expanding into these
geographies invalves significant expenditures, over a period of
several years, on development of monitoring and backup centers,
hiring and training of personnel, and marketing efforts to
introduce our brand to the new geography. We may not accurately
predict such costs or accurately anticipate operational
difficulties caused by local conditions, and therefore may not
achieve pur financial and strategic objectives for our operations
in the new geographies. Accordingly, we may incur losses as
we expand our operations. Some examples of the risks
gncounlered in entering new regions include:

- costs associated with signing up customers who may not
prove as loyal as our current custemer base, which would
cause our attrition rate to ingcrease;

- increased investment associated with understanding new
geographies and following trends in these areas in order to
effectively compete;

- increased costs associated with adapting our products and
services to different requirements in the local markets areas,
which may decrease our margins and profitability;

- chatllenges relating to developing and maintaining

appropriate, and risk of non-cempliance with, risk

management and internal control structures for gperations in
new geographies and understanding and complying with new
regulatory schemes;

reduced ability to predict our performance because we will

have less experience in the new geographies than in our

existing geographies;

- trade barriers such as export requirements, which could
cause us to experience inventory shortages or an inability to
offer our fult set of products;

- tariffs, taxes and other restrictions and expenses, which could
increase the prices of our products and make us less
competitive in some countries;

- currency effects, such as future currency devaluations; and

- political, regulatory and ather local risks.
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When we enter into acquisitions, such as the purchase of Arlo
Europe in 2019, we expect such acquisitions wiil result in varicus
benefits, However, achieving the anticipated benefits is subject
to a number of uncertainties, including whether the business
we acguire can be operated in the manner in which we intend.
Failure to achieve these anticipated benefits and synergies
could result in increased costs, decreases in the amount of
revenues generated by the combined business and diversion of
management’s time and energy. In addition, in connection with
any acquisitions, we cannot exclude that, in spite of the due
diligence we perform, we will not inadvertently or unknowingly
acquire actual ar potential liabilities or defects, including legat
claims, claims for breach of contract, employment-related
claims, environmental liabilities, conditions or damage,
hazardous materials or liability for hazardous materials or tax
liabilities. We may also become subject to national or
international antitrust investigations in connection with any
acquisitions or ptherwise.

Both cur failure to accurately predict or manage costs or any
operational difficulties we encounter in expanding into new
geographies, and our failure to accurately anticipate or capture
expected benefits from cur add-cn acquisitions, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

We are exposed to rishs associated with foreign currency
fluctuations as we translate our financial results into euro, and
these risks would increase if individual currencies are
reintroduced in the Eurozone,

We present our consolidated financial statements in euro. As a
result, we must translate the assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses of all of our operations with a functional currency
other than the euro into euro at then-applicable exchange
rates, Consequently, increases or decreases in the value of
certain other currencies (the Swedish krona (SEK} and
Norwegian krone (NOK) in particular) against the eurc may
affect the value of these items with respect te our non-euro
businesses in our conseclidated financial statements, even if
their value has not changed in their original currency. Our
primary exposure is to the SEK and NOK. For the year ended
December 31, 2019, 68% of our revenue was denominated in
eurp, 20% was denominated in SEK and NOK and 12% of revenue
was denominated in other currencies. Historically, the euro/SEK
exchange rate fluctuated significantly, as it averaged SEK 9.3248
= EUR 1.0 in 2015, SEK 9.4648 = EUR 1.0 in 20176, SEK 9.6464 = EUR
1.0 in 2017, SEK 10.2937 = EUR 1.0 in 2018 and for the year ended
December 31, 2019 the exchange rate averaged SEK 10.5824 =
ELIR 1.0.

Foreign exchange rate fluctuations can significantly affect
the comparability of our results between financial periods and
result in significant changes to the carrying value of our assets,
liabilities and stockholders’ equity. In addition, certain of our
supply contracts in non-euro denominated countries contain
clauses that reset the prices at which we buy cur goods based
on fluctuations in exchange rates, which can increase our costs
if rates move in a manner that is unfaverable to us.

Where we are unable to match sales received in foreign
currencies with costs paid in the same currency, our results of
operatians are impacted by currency exchange rate fluctuations
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and any unfavorable movement in currency exchange rates,
including as a resutt of the devaluation of a currencyin a
particular country we operate in, could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operaticns.

We may suffer future impairment losses, as a result of
potential declines in the fair value of our assets.

We have a significant amount of goodwill. We evaluate goodwill
for impairment at the end of the first full financial year following
acquisition and in other periods if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying vatue may not be
recoverable. Goodwill is evaluated for impairment by computing
the fair value of a cash-generating unit and comparing it with
its carrying value. If the carrying value of the cash-generating
unit exceeds its fair value, a gondwill impairment is recorded.
Significant judgment is involved in estimating cash flows and
fair value. Management’s fair value estimates are based on
historical and projected operating performance, recent market
transactions and current industry trading multiples. We cannot
assure you that significant impairment charges will not be
required in the future, and such charges may have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

We are subject to risks from legal and arbitration proceedings,
as well as tax audits, which could adversely affect our financial
results and condition.

from time to time we are involved in legal and arbitration
proceedings, the outcomes of which are difficult to predict. We
could become involved in legal and arbitration disputes in the
future which may involve substantial ctaims for damages or
ather payments. In the event of a negative outcome of any
material legal or arbitration proceeding, whether based on a
judgment or a settlement agreement, we could be obligated to
make substantial payments, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations. In addition, the costs related to litigation and
arhitration proceedings may be significant. Even in case of a
positive cutcome in such proceedings, we may still have to
kear part or all of our advisory and other costs to the extent
they are not reimbursed by the opponent, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and resutts of operations.

We are dependent on our experienced senior management
team, who may be difficuit to replace.

Qur success and our growth strategy are dependent on our
ability to attract and retain key management, sales marketing,
finance and operating personnel. in particular, we are
dependent on a small group of experienced senior executives.
There can be no assurance that we will continue to attract or
retain the qualified personnel needed for our business.
Competition for qualified senior managers, as well as research
and development personnel, in our industry is intense and
there is limited availability of persons with the relevant
experience. To the extent that the demand for qualified
personnel exceeds supply, we could experience a delay or
higher labor costs in order to attract and retain qualified
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managers and personnel from time to time. Also, our business
madel is specific and differentiated. So, we need to ensure new
personnel have the time and training to become fully effective,
We also are dependent on continuing to retain the very
experienced managers across the Company who are experts in
our specific and differentiated business model, We have had
new persannel join our management every year from 2014
through to 2019, particularly at the senior management level.
As such, we may face some of the challenges typically
associated with the integration and assimilation of new
managers and key personnel, such as changes in organisational
and reporting structures, the need to recruit additional new
personnel or the departure of existing personnel. [For example,
in 2014, we increased the size and responsibility of our
management team and we hired a new Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Human Resources Officer, In 2015, we hired a Chief
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Marketing Officer and Chief Legal Officer. We continued to add
new talent ta our senior leadership in 2616 with the hiring of a
new Chief Financial Officer and Chief Information Officer. In
2017, we hired a Chief Product and Services Officer to lead our
Research & Development organisation, and in 2018 we replaced
our Chief Marketing Officer and our Chief Legal Officer. in 2019,
there was a change in the regionat / country representaticn on
the management team, We alsc continued to expand our
"sales-installer” replicable business model as a key strategy.
which necessarily requires trained personnel, To the extent we
are not ahle to retain individuals in these roles, we will incur
additional costs to train new parsonnel to replace thase who
leave our business. Our failure to recruit and retain key
personnel or qualified employees, or effectively integrate new
managers and other key perscnnel, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, inancial condition and results
of operations.
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